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Monday, ~uly 29, 1912. 10 o'clock A.M.

Defendant in court '.vi th couns al. Jury called; one ab­

sent.

THE COURT: Gentlemen, in regard to the absence of ~uror

Leavitt, the deputy sheriff in charge c£ the jury informed

me on Saturday afternoon Juror Leavitt had been taken

sick and had another spell Friday night. I thereupon at­

tempted' to communicate with Dr Beckett, but was unable

to do so, to make arrangements V'Jith him, but did reach Dr

Wernigk. Dr Wernigk and I made a trip to the juror's home

yesterday morning and there m~t Dr Saylin, the family

physician; both of those doctors are in court this mo ming,

and I am going to call them to the stand to state the

facts in regard to the juror's condition. Dr Saylin, will

you take. tne stand first, plase.

DR ISAAC SAYLIN, a vii tness being first duly

sworn, testified as follows:

THE COURT: I will ask the witness a feyr questions, gen­

tlemen, and if you desire to further int errogate him, you

may do so •. Your name is Dr Isaac Saylin of Eillonte,

I beli eve? A yes sir.

Q And you are a regular practicing physician and surgeon

of this county? A yes sir.

Q And licensed to pactice b.1 this state? A Yes sir.

Q You have been alfting as family physician for juror
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Leavitt, near El Monte, have you not? A Yes sir.

Q And will you state to the court the history of his

present ailment and his present ailment as you have observ-

ed it and diagnozed it? A The ailment of Yr Leavitt is

just a simple case of appendicitis. He has had three at­

tacks or four attacks, and his last attack is such as to

preclude any possibility of him 1 Eavinghis bed for som~

time, and it makes an operation almost~mperative. I

have advised an operation, a.nd probably he will be oper­

ated on today •

THE COURr: Any questions?

MR FREDERICKS: How long have you mown Mr LeaVitt. Doc­

tor? A For three years.

Q How long have you -- did you wer attend him before?

A yes.
\

Q In other illnesses? A Yes.

Q Of this nature? A No, not of this nature.

Q When was he first taken sick this last time since

cojlrt Friday? A I was called Friday arening sometime

between 8 and 9 o'clock.

Q To his home? A To his home.

Q He vas at home. And then wmt symptoms did you find?

A The usual symptoms in these cases. There is very se-

vere pain and g~eat rsgidity over the region of the
'.

appendix, a.nd some fever, quite a pulse. These s~rmptoms

some:t;imes subside. but that doesn't mean tmt the case
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ready to be dismissed from the physician's observation

and care. Sometimes it winds up into an absc ess. At any

rate, the :r:atient should be kept under observation. How­

ever, under ali conditions, the appendix is better out

than in. You can never tell when it will become explo­

sive, and the patient will have to be rushed to the hospi­

tal.

Q How does his condition last Friday, compar~ with his

condition on t re pI' evious Friday? A It vas much more severe

Q But VIas it th e s arne thing? A" Oh, yes -- ",'ell, it

was more distinct. It vms easy to recognize it. There

\vas some obscure symptoms the previou!3 attack, but this

last attack vas very plain.

Q To \Yhat school of physicians do you belong, Doctor?

A I am regular.

Q Graduate of what institution? A University of Buffa­

10, New York.

Q And how long have you been practining? A About 13

years -- ~.-t. YEQrs.

Q How long have you been practing here? A Oh, probably

about eight years.

Q Always at El Monte? A No.

Q Where else? A I have been identified with the Santa

Fe work for a tj,me in Los Angeles; then I took cmrge of

the work at Albuqueraue, Ne\v Mexico, and then came back

to Los Angeles, a.nd finallysettled in El. Monte, opening
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1 !lospital.

2 Q, You have a hospital at El Monte? A I have a hospital

3 atEl:Mont e.

4 Q Do you remember what his temperature and pulse were

5 Friday? _ A yes sir , his temperature vas 101 and his pulse

6 was 100, at 5 o'clock.

7 Q, Were you there whEn Dr Wernigk was there? A Yes-

8 terday morning.

9 Q, How ViaS his pulse and temperature then? A His pul se

10 had subsided in frequency; it Ylas about 80; his temper-

11 atuBe vas 99..2.

12 Q, That wasn't very different from norrnal,\~s it?

13 A Oh, yes, tta1r lis different from normal.

14 Q, What is your opinion 8.bout whether he would be .able

15 to sit as a juror in this case? A Whet her he would be

16 able wmt?

17 Q, To sit as a juror in this case? A Well, I don't
not

18 thi,nk that he vlill -- he ought to be permi tted to get,..
19 out of bed until-he has had t mt op eration performed on

20 him, a.nd in-tint event, it might take weeks. We rever

21 can tell mat we are running up against in opening up the

22 abdoman. If it is a c1 ean case, he may be all right in

the course of two weeks, then, it would be a question of

whether he would. be able to resume his duti es here, and

again it -might be weeks, possibly six weeks or longer, if

we have to drain the abdominal cavity, if there should
an abscess there.
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years.

increased temperature? A Yes, sir.

A R. Wernigk

A Yes,' sir.

A 1 found the juror in bed and

W ERN 1 G K,R.

That is all.

DR.

MR. FREDERICKS.

of the existence of appendicitis?

THE COURT. Q State your full narre , please?

a witness called, being first dUly sworn, testified as

follows:

Q Rigidity and tenderness and accelerated pulse and

THE COURT. Any questions, Mr. Rogers?

MR. ROGERS. Doctor, you found phys ical symptoms, did you,

MR. ROGERS. That is all.

THE CO~. That is all.

Q You are a regularly licensed practicing physician and

sur geon bn this oity and county and s tate? A Yea, air.
been

Q. Have you for some years? A 1 have been here for ,25
J\

Q Yesterday morning you made an official visit with me to

the home of Juror L. A. Leavitt at El Monte. Will you state

the coij.dit.ion in which you found the juror and your diag-

nOBis of his condition?

he is evidently suffering from catarrh of the appendicitis,

an attack--there was tenderness and a good deal of rigidity

Over the region of the appendix, his temperature was

slightly a'tove normal, .his pulse d·id not indicate anything

under the cirourl'Btances. He told me thctt he had been
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1 60miting all day before and from the history tha 1 got

2 from Doctor Saylen and the patient, why, it just simply

3 fonf irmed my diagnos is i he is subject to catarr~i attacks

4 of ~ppendicitis which may at times, at some time or other

5 become quite serious.

6 MR. FREDERICKS. Q What do you think of his abilityu to go

7 on with his work here tomorrow? A 1 advised against it.

8 1 would not go myself. If 1 were in the same fix 1 would

9 not.

10 Q You do not think it would be safe, eh? A 1 think

11 he would be taking great chances. It might turn out all

12 right, 1 would certainly advise agains t it and 1 would

13 not certainly go myself.

14 MR. ROGERS. Q Dr. Wernigk, you found physical symptoms

15 indicating these symptoms? A Rigidity and tenderness--

Section 1089 of the Penal Code.26

16 Q Rigidity and tenderness, and the pulse would not

17 indicate much and the temperature might not indicaite much?

18 A Of course, a little temperature, you can have it under

19 all kind of circumstances, but the rigidity and tenderness

20 and the history undoubtedly points to it.

21 Q You think it would not be fair to him to come down and

22 s it here 7 A 1 do not think it would be right.

23 MR. ROGERS. That is all.

24 THE COURT. That is all; unless counsel deaire to be heard

25 the court will mame an order pursuant to the last clause
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1 MR. FREDERICKS. It is a matter for the court to determine.

2 THE COURT. It appears to the court, from the testimony of

3

4

5

6

7

Dr. Isaac Saylen and Dr. R • Wernigk, who have examined

Juror L A Leavitt, that the juror is ill, afflicted with

appendicitis and unable to perform his duty in this court,

the court therefore orders him to be discharged and draws the

name of the one alternate juror who was selected, Mr.

8 Blakesly. What are your initials, Mr. Elakes+ey?

9 MR. BLAKESLY. A. M. Blakesly.

10 THE COURT. A. M. Blakesly,. and calls upon the said alter-

n nate, " A. M. B1askesly, to take the place of ;.1[. Leavitti\lr.

12 in the jury box and be SUbject to the same rules and regula-

13 tions as though he "had been selected as one of the or iginal

14 . juror~, and orders· tha t the tr ial proceed before the 12

15 jurors $,s now constituted. Call your next witness.

16 MR. ROGERS. If your Honor pleases, pursuant to provisions

17 of Section 1000 of the Code of Civil Procedure, and in com­

18 pliance therewith the defendant now moves your Honor to ord~

19 the Distr ict A:ttorney and the prosecut ion in this case with

20 a spec ified time, to wi t, as soon as the circuls tances will

21 permit, and before the defendant Darrow takes the stand, to

22 give to the defendant an inspection of the copy or permis­

23 sion to take a copy of all letters in their possession,

24 memoranda or doc':lffients, telegrams, or entr ies or books or

25 papers purporting to or claiming to be either inthehand-

26 wr i ting of or signed by the defendant Darrow,
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permission to inspect a copy or take a copy of all documents

purporting to be addressed to or to have corne to the

knowledge or claimed to be addressed to or come to the

knowledge of the defendant Darrow, the same being/if evidenc

is required to that effect, in the possession of or under

the control of the District Attorney, which said documents

contain evidence relating to the merits of the action or

th~ defense therein. I understand, if yo~ Honor please~,

and it is claimed that within the control of the prosecu­

tion and now in their possession--

IS that a question?

I beg your pardon, you said it is claimed. I don t

Claimed by you?

MR • ROGERS.

MIl • FORD.

MR. FORD.

know claimed by whom?

MR • ROGERS. It is claimed by us and sundry newspaper

pronunciamentos attributed to the District Attorney's office

that they have documents signed by Mr. Darrow and docu-

ments which came to his knowledge or to his observation

relating to the merits of this action and some relating

to the defense thereof, before Mr. Darrow takes the stand

1 ask a ce·mpliance wi th the requirements of Section 1000

to enable us to examine our witnesses thereform, and for the

purpose of producing SUbstantive evidence in this case on

behalf of the defendant. I take it your Honor is familiar-­

THE COURT. Let me have my copy of the section, 1 would

like to read it over first.
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1 MR. ROGERS, Yes, sir. The matter of notice, if your

2 Honor pleases, is only a requirement that sufficient time to

3 comply with the or der shall be given.

4 MR. FORD. This, briefly is that the notice is not auffi­

5 cient, your Honor.

6 THE roURT. 1 will hear you in a moment, as soon as 1 read

7 the section. Now, Mr. Ford, 1 wi 11 hear you if you want to

8 be heard.

9 MR. FORD. 1 call your attention to State vs.}lerritt,

10 lOO racific, page 637: "Documents of the State's Attorney,

11 the defendant has no right to see." As 1 understand it,

12 this is confined merely to telegrams?

13 MR. ROGERS. You have a very wrong apprehsnliion of the requB t

14 1 said letters, documents, papers,
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1 whet her signed by him, memo randum met her signed by him,

2 claimed to come to his knowledge or in his handwriting,

3 or purporting to be by his authority. The 100 Pacific

4 holds only that documents of certain nature cannot be call-

5 ed for.

6 MR FORD: In case of Morrison vs. State, your Honor"lln the

as to their contents as ~idence, but in either event, the

application belohgs entirely to a civil case, and not a

criminal case, and the notice itself, is not sufficient,

and I have not the a.uthorities here at hand -- 'we would

51st S. W. Rep. page 358, and there is one in the 40th Tex.

criminal) page 4'73, it was held thecccused vas not entitled

to an inspection of his ovm letters before trial, and-s;rgu.­

ing merely the proposition of .law, held ttat it was not

applicable to criminal cases, but was a case between par-
not

ties to a civil action, and the,y are making a deID~nd upon
"~,

one of th e parties in this case, but upon t he District

Attorne,y, Who is merely counsel for the prosecution, and

further than that, your HOnor, the notice is not sufficient

there as to time or particularity. The,y must describe

the documents which they desire aa inspection of, and if

the People refuse to give them an inspection of those docu­

ments, then two courses are open to them: one of than to

ex:cuse the Peopl e fran putting the document in and the other

to compel the court and jur,y to accept the document in the

fom. they claim that they exist. Take their statement
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like about 15 or 20 minutes to present authoritie s on

this -- I mean a recess of 15 or 20 minutes to ~ather our

authorities.

MR ROGEHS: If the court desires evidenc e upon th e propo­

6i tion, I will call Mr Ford. Please take the stand.

THE COURT: Just a moment. It is not a question ofevi-

d enc e -- 1fr Ford has asked fo r t 1m e in which top repa r e

authorities.· Now, we will have to take a little recess

a little later. Have you a short witness you can produc e

at this time?

l.IR ROGERS: I can, but that matter -- I purpose to call a

wi tness, one very sho rt witness, but I think that will

divert us into another matter 'If/here counsel will doubt­

less have some argument to make, and I don't think they

will be looking up authorities while we consider that.

However, I will call Mr Petermichel, if your Honor desires

me to. That will raise another important matter.

'[R FORD: What is that, an inquiry into the grand jury

minutes?

THE COUll: Counsel will show tlat when it comes up. I

think you better take this matter up again at 2 0 'cloc k

this afternoon. In the meantime counsel will have a

chance to get his authorities together, and consider the

application, and unless counseldesires a ruling at once

the court will rule upon tm matter at 2 o'clock.

insist upon a ruling at t his time, we will go into
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ter at t his time.

MR APpm: Your Honor, allow me a suggestion.

THE couur: It is only a matter 0 f::aving time.

ME. APPEL: Trat is just exactly what we wish to do. We

wish to present our right to these documents, that is,

for the purpose of enabling us to hasten the examination

of Mr Darrow.

THE COURT: . I 'will do better, then. I 'will take the mat­

ter up after th e regular morning rec esse In the m am-­

time, somebody from the District Attorney's office can

be preparing and looking up the authorities.

MR APPEL: The other matter, yotlr Honor, is also a mat­

ter which ,viII probably -- that is, the n~t matter after

this \vill probabJ¥ be a matter which will consume, in

all probability , just as much time as this question, and

if we put the other matter on it \~uld not give them any

advantage, as far as time is concerned.

MR FORD: I think the law covers both matters and is

practicallY; the ::ame. In arguing one matter, we will argue

the law covering the other matter.

MR FREDERICKS: It would be well that we would have notice

of these points when they are coming up. We can work nights

on', them and nCbt have to have them brought to our at­

tention at 10 o'c~ock.

}!R BOGERS: I spoke to J"udg e Hut ton about taking it up

yesterday morning, and making the application in court
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I mean Saturday morning, I beg, your pardon -- JUdge Hut-

ton indicated that the situation \vas such that he could

not be here, and JUdge Willis had not yet return 00. -­

you remember your Honor directed me to apply to JUdge

We will have the information then vnat

ing to involve the same proposition.

I think th e putting ofn of Mr Petermichel is go-

to or he is not, irrespective of "mat anybody thinks

J. J. JErERMICHEL, a wi tness c all ad on be­

half of the defense, being first duly sworn, testified

this time, and take up this other matter at the close of

about it. I think, in order to save time, ttat the court

will accept 1fr Rogers' or fer to put on Mr Petermichel at

bloded proposition of law, that thedefen<hnt is entitled

5 Willis., JUdge Willis haS. not ye t retu med from Imperial,

6 so I ms not able to present the matter onraturday morning.

7 I am going to demand an insp 00 tion t when the documents az:·e

8 rig,ht! here in court.

9 MR FORD: You \mnted to do it right in front of the jury.

10 THE COURi': NOt no; there is no <lWasion -- this is a cold­

11
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16 the forenoon recess.

17 MR FORD:

18

19 l,fR FREDERICKS:

20 to look up.
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24 as folloVlS:
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MR ROGERS: Your name, pI alse. A J. J. Petermichel.
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Q, What is your occupation? A Officaalrepo Iter in th e

Sup erior Court, Los Angel es County, Stat e of Califo mia.

Q You have been official repo ner attending upon the

grand jury in th e taking of testimony? A In some por­

tions of it, yas sir.

Q Did you take the testimony of O. A. Tvei tmoe before

the grand jury?

MR FORD: We obj act to tmt as incompetent, irrelevant

and immaterial, apd an atte.mpt to get into their possession

a copy of the statements made by the witness before the

grand jury, which, under th e law, they are not enti tl Ed

to.

THE COURT: This is only a preliminary question; to bring

it up squarely, he might answer t m t question yes or no;

then I will hear you On the nex:t question. Answer that

question yes or no, Mr Petermichel? A I did, yes sir.

ER ROGERS: Did you transcribe the testimony of O. A. Tveitmo

as taken by you~elf, as you have described, before the

grand jury?

:M:R FORD: Now, if th e court please.

THE COURr: That is also preliminary. He can answer

that ~es or no. A I did, yes sir.

lIrR ROGERS: Have you a copy of it in your possession a t

this time, upon the stand? A I have.

'MR ROGERS: Let me have it.

MR FORD: We object to aI\V transcript being handed to
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conn sel of the proc eedings before the grand j UIY, and

furthermore, your P..onor, I don.t believe things of this­

sort should be written up without notice to the grand

jury :-- without notice to the District Attorney, what is

occurring before that grand jury.

THE COURl': That is a matter to be -taken up some other

plac e. I will hear you on your obj ootion only. -

!ra FORD: Under the case of people vs --

l,ra ROGERS: Just a moment, before the wh::>l e matter is ar­

gued, I desire to make one further inquiry. The testimony

of O. A. Tvei tmo e, vhich was taken b efor e the grand jury,

state whether or not you gave a transcription thereof, a

copy thereof, to the District Attorney? A I did.

I f!P.ve the original to the District Attorney.

Q That is the original transcription? A Yes sir.

Q How long ago?

MR FORD: We object to that. The law provines that it

should be delivered to the District Attorney.

THE COURT: Overruled.

A I couldn't say definitely, Mr "Bogers. WIthin a

few days after the testimony was tkken, probably a week.

MR ROGERS: At -what time was the testimony ta ken? A Feb­

ruary 16th of this year.

Q It was in this case, was it not?·

1m FORD: Objected to upon the ground it is calling for

the conclusion of the witness, and your Honor has already
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1 decided that matter.

2 THE COURr: Obj ec t ion sustain ad.

3 MR FORD: The testimony of Mr Tvei tmoe having been taken

4 after the indictment was returned in this case.

5 1m ROGERS: Exception. I desire to show, if your Honor

6 please -- 1:t vas in relation,'las it not, to the matter

7 now under inv estigation in t his case?

8 MR FORD: We obj ect to tlat as calling for a conclusion

is sustained.

of the witness, and an attempt to get at the subject mat­

t er of th e testimony, vll!ch is absolutely improp er, incom­

petent, irrelevan t and immaterial, and the've~ matter

I desire toargue at this time, that they have no right

to inquire into th e nature of the testimony or anything

about the substance of the testimony.

THE COURr: The oQj ection that it calls for a conclusion

MR ROGERS: I ask for an adj ournment in or der that I may
produce it and shoVT that the testimony itself related to

the very issues and subj ect of the matter now pending be­

fore this jury. If your Honor will listen to me just a

moment, I think you will ,~et th e view of it that. will show

positively the aspect of things, somewhat. We desire to

show, under the provision of the code, that where testi­

mony is within the poY~r of the pl.rty to prOduce, and he

doesn't produce it, it is under instruction of the court

to th e j u~ to be deemed to be agains t him.' Now" they
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called Mr Tvei tmoe to the stand, according to the record,

and they asked him to come to th e stand as t heir vii tness;

they swore him; asked him his name; asked him hisaddress,

and then ex:cused him, in th~ir case. Now, they. will at­

tempt to argue to this jury that we should have called

Tveitmoe. We desire to show that they suppressed all of

this whic h was wi thin thei;r power, and which they had in

thei r possession, taken before th e grand jury, which re­

lated to the merits of this action, and that they did not

produce it before this jury, in order that the jury m.j.ght

have the benefit of it, whatsoever it migl't have been.

Under the law, as they contend for it, l[r Tveitmoe is sworn

not to reveal to us what he testified before the grand jUry.

They sit h ere in possession of that testimony, transcrib-

ed by the official rep>rter, and defy us to do anything.
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26 produce wiffinesses to testify to facts in our favor. They

They called rlrr. Tveitmoe to the stand and swore him as one

of their witnesses; simply asked him his name and address

them or that we should have called for, or that the presump­

tion is in their favor, onthe contrary, we purpose to show

that the presumption is against them.

Now, if your Honor please, the burden of proof is at

all times on the prosecution, always. We are not bound to

session testimony relating to the merits of this action

which they have refused to produce, and under the law they

cannot either argue that the testimony would be favorable to

and then excused him, knowing exactly what he would testify

t,p, if, perchance, he testified as he did before the grand

jury, or if he did not, subject to their correction; sub­

ject to the production of the document before the grand

jury asking him if he did not so testify at a certain time

and place. Now, your Honor will be called upon to instruct

this jury that where evidence is wilfully suppr-essed by a

party it is deemed to be against them and therefore they

cannot argue that the testimony of Mr. Tveitnoe, if produced,

would be in their favor. Not only do we want the testimony

to go to the jury but we want the fact to go to the jury;

they had the testimony in their hand which was forbidden to

UBj that they have denied to us, and which they have sworn
they

the witness not to reveal· to us, and which J\ have sworn thi

reporter not to reveal to us j that .they have in their pos-
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1 must produce their case and all the evidence germane and

2 relevant to the proposition, it has been held in this

3 state that they are duty bound to produce substantial and,

4 meritorious facts in their favor and in our favor as well,

5 relating to the merits of the action.

6 Now, if your Honor please, they sit here and decline

7 to permit us a copy of that testimony; decline to permit

8 the witness, under his oath and SUbject, perchance, to a

9 contempt of court, decline to allow that witness to tell us

10 what he testified to before the grand jury, and as it were,

11 dogs inthe manger, prevent us from giving testimony and

12 prevent us from producing it where right there onthat

13 witness stand is that testimony sworn to before ~he grand

14 jury and right in that box is a duplicate of that test imony;

15 is that fair? That is our evidence; we are entitled to

16 show the ,suppression of this testimony, when, as they did,

17 they called lllr. rveitmoe to the stand and then withdrew him,

18 as a substantive fact in this case.

19 MR. FREDERICKS. Now, may it please the Court, it is

20 aWfully hard to regard Mr. Rogers seriously in a matter of th t

21 kind. Here is the history of this Tvei tmoe bus iness.

22 Against all ordinary procedure Mr. Rogers wished to retire

23 from the cour t room in order tha t Mr. Johannsen and ;~r.

24 Tveitmoe might be put on the witness stand, there to tell

25 I what occurI' ed, poss ibly, in regard to the taking of Mrs.

26 Caplan out of the state. 1 believe that was a matter· th
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assumed that 1~. Rogers probably had in the year before,

gained some information in regard to this matter by reason

of his affiliations with the prosecution in another case.

was uppermost in the matter of investigation, and the court

generally permitted the entire procedure to be set aside, an

permi tted Mr. Johnannsen and Mr. Tvei tmoe to be put onthe

stand by the defense in order that they might tell what they

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

knew about the taking away of Mrs. Caplan. 1t hav ing been

9 tu. Johannsen took the stand, as the court will remember, and

10

11

gave his testimony, and was cross-examined, and when he had

finished, they decided that they would not put M4 Tveitmoe

12 on the stand. 1 suppose they had their own good and suffi-

13 cient reasons for it. At any rate, they so decided that

14 they would not put M4 Tveitmoe on the stand. He Was here i

15 held here by them, one of t~eir co-aditators and assistants,

16 requested by them, that the court permit him to sit here in

the court room and hear all the testimony becauss he was17

18 one of their assistants; exempted from the rule excluding

19 witnesses, in order that he might be here and assist the

20 defense in prepar ing the defense and putting on their wit

21 neeses. Well, when they failed to put M.r. Tveitmoe onthe

22 witness stand on that occasion, and decided that they would

23
.

not go any further into that matter than they had· gone with

24 Mr. Johannsen, we c.alled :;!r. Tveitmoe to the witness stand,

25 thinking that, peradventure we might ask him ourselves in

26 regard to the matter, and after having done so we conclude

that--weread the section to him in regard tQca;l}h+(rlJy\~.~(~((HRRlA
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1 and we concluded that as he was so closely affil~ated by the

2 defense we would not put him on the stand but would permit

3 the defense, if they ever chose to put him on the stand,

4 in order that we might have the beriefi:e of cross-examination.

, 5 Now that is the history of Il:. Tveitltoe being on the .witnes

6 stand.
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Now, in regard to this matter, it appears that Yr Tveit­

moe gave some testimony -- it has been argued heretofore

before the court -- he gave some testimony before the

grand jury after Mr Darrow had been indicted. Mr Tveit­

moe, is alive, I presume; is within reach of the defense,

and if theywant to use him, to give that testimony here on

the w'itness stand, or to give any other testimony, they

can secure him and put him on. It makes no difference what

he swore to before the gf'and jmry, ttat is not testimony and

could not be introduced here as testimony. The testimony

must come from the living lips of Mr Tveitmoe on the wit­

ness stand, and this document, which the witness holds

in his hands, is not testimony.. It 'could not be used

he re as testimony whil e Mr Tvei tmoe is available, and can

be put on, in fact, it could not be used as testimony in

any went, probably, so we are not suppressing any t esti­

mony when we obj ect to the defense getting ahold of the

written-up statements·that,.~ Mr Tveitmoe made before

the grand jury. If theyare the truth, his memory would

assist him in making those same statements here; if they

wish to interrogate him about them, and they will get

all th e benefi t of them. Now, that is the point t hat is

before the court. That is the vtay Mr Tveitmoe came to

be on the witness .stand, and that is the view of 'vat the

witness now has -- that it is not testimony and could not

be used as testimony, but tl'at the defense wishes to get
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it in their possession in order that they may see what

].[1" Tveitmoe did swear to before the grand jury. Now,

that is, we believe, all that this is for.

1m ROGERS: Just a moment; I am going to make a statement-­

MR FORD: If the court please, I am entitl a1 to finish

side by side

THE COURT: Now, who is going to have the floor --

1fR ROGERS: Only replying to certain questions of fact.

THE COUR[': You will have an opportunity to reply on

both questions of Jaw and fact at the proper time, but I

must h mr t his argument.

MR ROGERS: We have been deprived so oft en of our posi­

tion inargument by attempts at interruption, and so forth,

that it is well for us, if your Honor please, to require

that the conditions of the a rgument and the facts be

stated frankly before we go into th e argument.

TEE COURT: I wi11 see t 0 it that you a re not int errup ted,

Mr Rogers, but I vr.i.ll hear ]!r Ford first, and th en I will

hear you fully.

MR FORD: If the court please, I vlould like to .ask the

witness a fe~ questions before taking the argument up.

MR R01 ERS : That is ag reeable •

THE CaUR'R: Go ahead.

\rR FORD: When did you write this document up tlat you

have in your hand? A I think sometime wi thin a week af­

ter it was taken, Hr Ford.
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1 Q And it has been in your possession 'wer since? A It

2 has.

3 Q It v.as made at the same time that th e original was

4 made up? . A yes.

5 Q And. is a carbon copy of the original? A A carbon

6 copy of the orig inql.

7 Q Been in your possession all the time? A Yes sir,

8 under lock and key and a secret plac e known only to my­

9 self.

10 Q No one else has had access to it but yourself? A No

11 is r.

12 Q How did it happen you had it in your possession this

13 mornirg? A IVRs SUbpoenaed by the cou rt to produc e -­

14 here is a copy cif the subpoena which will probably speak

15 for itself. I might modify that statement as to no one

is not evidence. It is a statement made by the witness

tion 1000 Code of Civil Procedure, and the other un:! er

section 1985, of the Code of Civil Procedure, a SUbpoena

duc es tecum, whic h has been served on this witness al-
. document

ready. The:·/\ which the wi tness holds in his hand

else seeing it. I did have my assistant S1Jvom as assist­

ant reporter, in order to transcribe the testimony for me

and he did transcribe it, and outside of my assistant and

myself no one else has seen it.

1!R FORD: Now, if the court please, there are two means by

which a document is brought into court; one under sec-
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not at a~ time be used as evidenc e against the d efend-

out '~. the pr esenc e an d hearing 0 f the defendant.·· It could

cannot be used by the People at any time unless Mr Tveit­

moe takes the stand in which case it could be used for im-

a statement of' this". ':--permit of his being impEached by

This very question, your Honor,ve,s up

THE COURP: lVRs about to say, Mr Ford, this question has

been SUbstantially in its present form, came up here a

few days ago, and the court at that time rul e:i upon

character; to make his testimony conform to the statements

previously made by th e wi tness before some other tribunal.

the person who had previously testified to oomething, to

testify in the same manner, and prevent his being tripped

up, to enable him to fabricate a story \vhich would not

there. The only obj ect, your Honor, of getting a statement

of this charac ter, on th e !R rt (f the defendant in this

case -- I don't wish to be personal -- the only obj ect

which a defendant in an or dinary case could have in ob­

taining a statement of this character would be to enable

peachment oaf the Witness, provided he made a statement dif­

ferent from that contained in th estatement \vhich he has

ant, he not having been present not at any time read it or

declared that it\"B.s authentic, or did anythi~ with re­

gard to the statement itself, which would make it admis­

sible, therefo re, the document is not legal ev idenc e be­

fore any court as far as the defendant is cone erned. It
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given a chance to early.

may Yaive his right of confrontation and cross-examina-.

Peopleqgainst Bird in the 132nd California, I read from

page 263 -- holds among other things,that the defendant

I called your Honor's attention at that time,

I believe, to the case of People vs. Glass in the 139th.

THE COURI': I think you better let them assume the burderu

in tlat way, and they might be able to show tlRt the sit­

uation is so different as to call for a different ruling,

but that is a burden they have to assume, and oug ht to' be

5~
the question asthen presented, and the burde~ of showing . I
that the present situation is so different as to call for a

different rule, I think, even, is \"Ii. t h the defense.

MR ROGERS: Now, if your Honor pI ease, counsel is absolutely

mistaken in saying that t his document coul d never be used

because of theabsence of the defendant. The case of

:MR FORD:

tion to produce testimony taken in his absence. I

presented that case myself to the Supreme Court -­

MR FREDERICKS: But the People cannot use it.

MR., ROGERS: The People cannot u se it, but we can us e it.

1m FORD:" You could use this statement in place of 1fr

'lifeitmoe? I guess not.

MR ROGERS: I understood, your Honor, I was going to have

the floor.

lJ.R FORD-: I beg th e court's pardon and I also beg couna el

pardon. It was so a stonishing I could not refrain•.
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1 :MR ROGEBS :

2 ( Reading: )

Then I will astonish you a little more.

"Under the title of the 'Rights of defendant

ordinar,y rule, on the part of the People; they may intfo­

duc e testimony taken under th~;e c ircumstanc es. (Reading:)

"It is here to be noted that the section is declarative of

presence of the defendant, who, either in person or by

counsel, has cross-examined or had an opportunity to

cross-examine the witness, or vm.ere the testimony of a wit­

ness who is unable to give security for his ap~rance has

been taken conditionally in like manner in the presenc e of

in a criminal action't it is provided thtt a defendant

skall have the right of confrontation of the witnesses

against him, saving in tho se cases vmere the charge has

been preliminarily examin ed by a committing magistrate,

the testimony taken down by question. and answer in the

That, of course, is an exception to thethe defendant. d

the rights of the defencant, e..nd in·so defining those

rights, limits the evidenfe, addthe mode and manner of

its production and introduction, which may be employed

against him. Ined'fect, therefore, e.nd as our decisions

hold, it deprives the pro secntion of the right, which

theretofore in it enjoyed, of introducing against a defend­

ant the evidence of a deceased or absent witness, unless

taken before a committing magistrate, or by deposition in

the mode prescribed. It forbids the introduction' of the

testimony of such witness, absent or deceased, which may
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have been given upon a former trial 0 f the case.

the legislature should have so modified the cownon law

Now, th ere a defendant v.qived his right of confronta-

Sufficient to say

In this instance, I might observe to your HOnor

rule.v,e need not now stop to inquire.

tion.

tha t yr Fredericks' statement t hat they called that wit­

ness; that they put him on and then withdrffi'v him, think-

ing that they wouldresel~e to themselves the right of crOSB-

examination. Now, we affer to show, if your Honor please,

by witnesses, that they produced Yr Tveitmoe before the

grand jury and to ok hi s. test imony, vhich vas aga.in at them;

testimony which they dare not:read to this jury, but they

brought Mr oscar Lawler into this court room and sat him

right down behind them when Mr Tvei tmoevas to be call eel to

the stand. It has app mred in this case, if your Honor

please, that Mr Tveitmoe is under indictment by the Feder

grand jUry; he is also under indictment by thisgrand jU

that it is quite Iilain that it has done so. But, upon

the other hand. there is in this, no restriction upon

the rights of a defendant. The rule as to him is the same

as it Vias before theadoption of the codes, and as it stood

at COIllmon law. He may waive his right of confrontation,

if he so desires, a.nd introduc e in aTi denc a, t estiIfionyof

such dead orabsent witnesses, whether t:mt testimonyvB.s

given at the preliminary ecamination, or upon a former

trial of the cause."
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1
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of this county, as I am info nned, and the District Attor­

ney, therefore,rlesires the privileges oferos s-examina t ion.

vmich ,~uld effect that vdtness' own· personal rights,

which would subj ect him in this case to a cross-examina-

tion which might be introduced against him im his own trial,

becaus e under your Hono r' s ruling, you have permitted

7 the m· to interrogate every wi tn ess from the commence-

case, with Mr Oscar Lawler sitting here ready toake ad­

vantage of wery word and syllable i we offer to show, if

your Honor please, t hat he refused totake th e stand for u

ment of his life down to the present time of taking the

stand, a.s to all his relations and every aspect and fea­

ture in this case, and of the dynamiting cases of th e Mc­

Namaras, a.nd all oth er cases allied th ereto. Now, was it

right, if your Honor please, that they should withdraw him

from t he stand for the purpose ofcross-examining him, and

with Mr Oscar Lawler sitting behind them, the man that is

going to demand of Mr Tveitmoe, his life, maybe, possibly

y ERrs in the penitentiary, v.as it right that they should

sit back here and faY, "We are going to cross-examine him,u

vre re, if they call him thanselves, they could not so do.

Thereupon 1fr Tveitmoe being advised by his own counsel,

not by us, he sat here, rleclined to go on the stand for

cross-examinationi declined to sit here on this witness

stand, emd put his own life and his ovm liberty in j eo­

pardy by a cross-excqnination of every aspect of his own
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he sat here to get; they concluded that they \~uld, if

your Honor forced us to put him on, so they could cross­

examine him and deprive him of his rights personally, as

the d ef mdant in the cases pending against him. Now, that

is the situation in a nut-shel!. I cannot put Mr Tveit-

under those conditions and under advice of counsel, coun­

sel making the statement to us that they would not pennit

moe on to be cross-examined, because his counsel won't

him to go on and be c ross- er..amined by Mr Oscar Lawler,

through the intervention and mouth of W. Joseph Ford.

I don't blame him; if I were his conns el, I would e;ay,

"You cannot do it", but they had e~ready taken his testimony

and vte stand h ere to waive our constitutional rights,

as in the case of People against Bird says, "But upon

the other hand there is no restriction of th e rights

of the defendant. He may waive his right of confronta­

tion, if' he sodesires." And we do\"'aive it. Now, "mat

they were trying to do, if your Honor please, was to

trick us, I might say, to out-play us, to euchre us into

this condition of things, when they called Mr Tveitmoe,

as Mr Fredericks bas just now admi tted to your Honor,

in his le.st statement, that they called Mr Tveitmoe, and

then finally concluded, after a momentary consultation,

knowing the role of law that they could not c ross- ~ine

him if they called him themselves, that they could not

furnish lir Oscar Lawler with all the information that
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7

8

let him go on, but tLley have got evidence there, and

unless they they are .working for the benefit of Indian­

apolis, unless they are working for the benefit of Mr Os­

car Lawler, they might \1'1811 have called him upon this is­

sue alone, "VIrhich they woul d have a rig ht to int errogate

him about, if he Vlere their own witness.

It is hard for a laynw.n to understand these matters.

They don.t understand, if your Honor plERse, that the de-

I mean, be-in Indianapolis or before the grand jury

fore a jury in any court. You have that right; it is your

oVID personal right. If, however, they had called him as

they originally intended to do, then all they coul d have

asked him about was this case, and we could not have cross­

examin ed him about a.nything else, but they seeking an

undue and unfair advantage of Tvei tmoe, seeking ·to ap­

prehend -- seeking, as it v.ere, to portend his own

trial, they brought yr Oscar Lawler into this court

9 .fendant has a right to refuse to be cross- ~amin00; to

refuse, if your Honor please, to speak and fUrnish evi­

dence e.gainst himself, a.nd it may not be EVidence agaiinst

himself, but widence which may be used against him,

and therefore, his counsel, very properly, as your Honor

would have done t as I woul d have done, and as Mr Ford

would have done, mid, no, not with Mr Oscar Lawler back­

ing this thing up, shall you go on the stand to be cross­

examined for days and days, prejudicially to your own trial
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as impotent pieces

'What he V'i8.nted \\as to c ross-examine him and you and I know,

sir, what that meant. Now, if your Honor plmse, here sat

ney, a,nd refused to put him on orrefused to allow us to

call him, and so, if we did call him, he would not testi­

fy under tho se circumstances. We were ready to show that

of San Francisco, Mr Tveitmoe's attor-

and they said, no, 'Ire will cross-examine him, t.hereby,

as I said, depriving him of ,e~ery right sacred to a defend­

ant and guaranteed by the constitution of this state and

of the union, and I might' say, of every saate. Now, if

your Honor pI mse, are we toys to be moved around

in the game they play, your Honor? I think not. So, if

they may put him on there; they had a right, and they call­

ed him, but yr Fredericks has confessed to your Honor

that he didn't intend to call him in this case alone.

and we offer to show it by competent evidencte, and we

demand the right to put in th e testimony whic h he f!1J.ve

under the interrogation of the District Attorney himself

before the grand JUT!, and under oath, waiving our con-

sti tutional right 0 f confrontation, and depriving them of

the right which they sought, to convict Mr Tveitmoe in

Indianapolis, if so they might, with lfr Oscar Lawler and

themselves getting the testimony here. I vdll call wit­

nesses to that effect, if it is necessary sO to do,

Mr Appel has some circumsta.nces whic hhe desires

Ur ,s'l-Qss.-inger
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present ed to your Honor is in effec t, \"hat is 1 ega! evi­

dence under our code --

THE COURr: Before you begin , we better take the momirg

recess, Mr Appel.

(cTuryadmonished. Recess for 5 minutes.)
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If your Honor please, the legal question which ,is
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to introduce, we are entitled to the specific instructions

of this court, the matter of law, that the State, people of

the State, represented by the District Attorney here, are

estopped absolutelyfrolli contradicting or claiming a differ­

eDt state of facts than that which would have come out in

(After recess.)

THE COtJRT. You may proceed, Mr. Appel.

MR. APPEL. If your Honor please, the question that is

presented is whether or not we are entitled to show, first,

that we are in a position of absolute inability to produce

a fact or to produce evidence which is in our favor; second

whether or not we. have a right to present the omission upon

the other side of this case, of a party to this litigation,

to this suit, an omission which, if proven properly, may

be considered by the jury as evidence in our favor; third,

whether or not, by proof of facts and circumstances, whe­

ther or not we h~~ aright to present to the jury such chain

of circumstances as that the jury may reasonably draw an

inference of fact in our favor; fourth, whether or not, by

the introduction of these circumstances which we seek now

the evidence had they not suppressed the evidence.

Now, those ar'e the propos itione of law and in­

ferences and presumptions which arise upon facts Which may

be shown in the case.

Why, a party to a litigation who claims the

applicability of a presUThption of law provided by the Cod
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experience in equity cases. A man gets upon the witness

are applicable also to criminal actions, except as otherwise

He sits idly by. He

Section 1102 of the

Your Honor has had great

So we say, your Honor, tha t wher e

"The rules of evidence in civil action

one side puts a witness upon the stand and

ar e in this state and elsewhere.

must show, he has a right to show, the act, circumstances,

declarations and contradictions from which that presumption

necessarily ar iees, or from which that inference of fact

necessarily ar ises, or from which either party to the suit

may be estopped from ever denying the truth of the facts.

Now, let us first see what the rules of evidence

provided in this code."

Penal Code provides:

stances surrounding a transaction.

ever a fact can be proven in a civil action by shOWing the

omission upon the other side to do that which in good con­

science he ought to have done, wherever that may be shown

in a civil action, we say that we have the same right in a

criminal action to show that omission on the part of the

questions him concerning his remerr,brance of the circum-

people, just as they have a right to show an omission on our

part, were they contending for that proposition on the part

of the people.

Let me illustrate it.

stand -
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24 holds in h,is pocke:\; a document which is directly contrary

25 to the evidence' he undertakes to establish by oral evidence.

H we understand26 The other side says, "Well, your onor,
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1 that there is a document which establishes the fact in­

2 disputably, and auch a document as ,that ought to be pro-

3 duced. " Why? Because the oral evidence of this witness,

4 in view of the existence of a document, will be evidence

5 of leas weight, because the memory of man is so fallible

6 that there may be a mistake in his testimony as to the

7 exact import and the exact action of the parties, or the

8 exact connection of the parties With the facts. We deman

9 that that document be produced. The other side sits idly

10 by, and either denies the existence of the contention upon

11 the other side or denies the existence of the document.

12 Would your Honor hesitate a moment in allowing the party

13 contending for the existence of a written document, would

14 your Honor deny them the right to show the existence of

15 a written document, and that the written document went into

16 the hands of the other side, and that it was their duty

17 to account for its loss? Even if they contended that there

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

was no written docun:ent, would your Honor not have the right

to allow the s ide contending that there was higher evidence

of the fact than that which comes from the oral testimony
to show that fact,

of the witness, / for the purpose of relying upon the pI' e-

6umption provided by Section 19>3 of the Code of Civil

Procedure, which says--subdivision 6, Section 1963, that,

"Higher evidence would be adverse from inferior being pro-

duced"--that the higher evidence would be advers~J from

inferior being produced?
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Let's see, what inferior evidence was introduced

here agair.st this defendant? Harrington) you know, came

upon the stand) your Honor. First, let me take it up in a

logical way--first they produced the evidence of a banker

down there in San Francisco, who testified that upon a

cer tain time Mr. Tvei tIT,oe came into the bank with some other

person, probably Mr. Darnm, that he requested the cashing of

a check for the sum of 110,000, and that he requested th~

that money should be given to him in large bills; and they

show by circun1stances\that that money went eitper into the

possession of Mr. Tveitreoe or went into the possession of the

person that he requested the money should be given to.

They introduced that fact. They stop there, your Honor.

They stop there. Ordinary decency, ordinary consideration

for the rights of the people of the State of California,

the impulses of any common, honest human being, would demand

that the truth should be shown in this case, would have

demanded of any labor or layman, or any :\". honest person

on the face of the earth, that Tvei tIl.oe should be then put

upon the stand and asked, "Tvei tnJoe, you got this $10,000,

did you? What did you do with it? Did you give it to

Darrow? 11 That would have been the ordinary way to follow

up that fact) your Honor, by the merest tyro in the

detective business, by anyone that had learned the fact

that that $lO,OOO'was given to Tveitrroe. Now, then, let's

go on and see what Tve i tmoe did With that money •
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Ah, your Honor, Tveitmoe appeared before the

2 grand jury. That is admitted here in evidence. Tvei tmoe

3 appeared before the grand jury. Will they deny that they

4 questioned him? Let them rrake the denial here in open

5 court, as professional men, as professional attorneys, as

6 men who ar e sworn to do their duty to their state, to

7 their fellowmen and to their Gods, let them stand up here

8 and say that Tvei tmoe was not examined before the grand

9 jury in the presence of Mr. Ford, that he testified as' to

10 what he did With this $lO,OCO.

11 1t is the duty of a lawyer, it is ,the duty of
independent of

12 any man,/whether he is a lawyer or not, that he shall not

13 deceive, or sit silently by and lead to a deceit upon the

14 Court, or upon a constituted part of a court, this jury,

15 sworn and constituted as a part of this court.

16 Now, let us say that Tveitmoe did give them

17 that information. We have a right to know what that in­

18 formation was. Was it against us? Let it come out, that

19 Darrow may gO'upon the stand and meet that testimony. If

20 it is for us then, your Herior" we are entitled to show that

apply that presurr:ption of law in our favor? roes it not

becon·.e incuDlbent upor. us J your Honor J to show that higher

fact. And why are we lenti tIed to show what that testimony
it

was? For the reaeon that we must shOW~ in order to raise

this presurr~tion that higher evidence' would be adverse from

21

22

23

24

25

26

inferior evidence being produced. How are you going to
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26 have introduced upon the other side? The willing rr.an.

admissions of a defendant or confessions of a defendant

NoVi, what

It stands in the same

Why? We ask you. Because you have not shown

prosecution of this defendant?

applicable.

is the inferior evidence? Let us see. The law is that

evidence existed of that fact, and how are we going to

show it, except by show ing what Tvei tmoe told, under the

solUinity of an oath, before that grand jury, to the District

Attorney, and to the authorities haVing in charge the

that there was higher evidence which should have been intro-

duced, instead of inferior evidence introduced.

category thatwe have a right to shew that a docull1ent ex­

isted, written evidence of a fact, your Eonor. How are

we going to apply this presumption to which we are entitled?

Why, if we asked your Honor to instruct the jury

upon that point, you will say to us, this instruction h not

there must be independent evidence showing the truth of

those statements •.

And what is this inferior evidence which they

concerning his complicity in a crin~ or in a criminal trans­

action are of the lowest, of the meanest kind of evidence;

that they do not rise up to the dignity of being evidence of

the fact; that a defendant may come in and make a confes­

sion of a commission of a crime, and 1 say that he could not

be conv icted or hung 01' sent to the penitent iary upon his

own admissions and from his o~~ confessiono, but that
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The man who says he is testi-

2 fying under cotnpulson, and who claims inrrunity. The man

3 who, according to his testimorw, was willing to violate

4 every trust and every confidence that ever was reposed in

5 him. Outside of the merits of this case, a man who has

6 shown himself willing to serve the state--he comes in and

7 saya Darrow was down there about the latter part of Sept­

8· ember, over there on the porch at his houae, and he,

9 "Showed me a roll of bills, and he said that he was going

10 to get to the jury upon that. He told me got it from

11 Tve i tmoe • II That is the connection which they undertake

12

13

14

15

16

17

to show, your Honor. 1 say that that evidence is infer icr
such

evidence. 1 say it ,is so light, 1 say it is J... absolutely

infinitesimal eVidence, compared With the testimony of

a man who is here shown to have gotten $10,000 in big', bills,

or whatever the evidence may be, down there in San Francisco

September 2, 1911, that the evidence of that man Harr ington

18 is of an inferior quality. It is of an inferior quality.

19 Now, let us see, your Honor. We have a right, therefore,

20 to lay the foundation to ask your Honor to say to this jury,

if the prosecution were possessed of higher evidence con­

cerning the transmission of this $10,000 from Tveitmoe to

this defendant here, it was their duty to produce it; and

your Honor has aright to know the nature and character of

the evidence, and this jury, in order to apply that pre­

sumption and principle of equity and justice, have a righ
25

21
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23

24

26

I



4 produce?

to know what it is that they knew that1

2

3

duce.

'71'"'
.) I 0

they did not pro-

What is it that they knew that they did not

We say to your Honor and to this jury, it is the

5 evidence and the informtion which they had, which was given

6 by Tvei tmoe before the grand jury under oath. Tvei trnoe

7 was put there under oath for the prosecution. He came there

8 before the grand jury as a witness for the prosecution.

9 The defendan t was not heard there. He was not ins ide. of

10 that star chamber proceeding. He was not th ere to defend

11 himself. He was not there to raise a finger in protest

12 against such iniquitous proceeding. He has a right to have

13 this jury know what that information was. It cannot be

14

15

w 16

17
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19

20

21

22

admissible in evidence as substantive testimony, but it is

admissible to ahow that fact, toBfuow that higher evidence

existed other than the fl il1lsy, windy testin,ony of Mr.

Barrington.

Now, upon another principle, your Ronorj-1et me

have that section following 1963 or immediately before-­

here, 1 have it. Letts see, your Honor. subdivision 3 of

Section 1962--and this is good law, splendid law. IThese

presumptions and this principle of justice are maxims es-

23 tablished by the experience of men. It touches the

that ought to be evidence, -but it iahis act,

of evidence that may be given against him.

24

25

26

of men. It is not wh at every n:.an may do or say in cour t
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Suppose it had been in another court, in one of

2 the departments of this court. A man comes in in a case of

3 accounting between individuals and he presents his account,

4 I and he says that ther e is so much of a balance due rr,e fr om

5 the defendant. The defendant says, "Show me your books,"

6 and the party says, "They have been destroyed by fire. They

7 were stolen from me." The defendant has a right to show

8 that they are in existence, and he also has a right to show

9 by parol evidence what those books showed, and the other

10 side has no right to contradict it. He is estopped by good

conscience, he is estopped in equity from establishing the

accoun t by those methods, and it is right that it should be

13 so.

14

It is right--it is proper.

Now, is that the law? Counsel says in criminal

15 I cases this cannot be done. Then, your Honor, the pr inciples

16 of equity and jurisprudence must have been, by some mere

17 will and whim of counsel here, have been entirely eliminated

18 fromcriminal and civil jurisprudence.

19 Now, let us see if that is so. subdivis ion :3,

20 Section 1962: "Whenever a party has by his own declaration,

21 act or omission"--now, we have a right to show, your Honor,

22 that here is an act on the part of the State of California,

23 an act of what? An act of s uppr ess ion. That there is an

24 omission. What is the omiss ion? An omission to show by

b · b . . r=..ther than -by inferior evidence, a fact in25 "lg .er eVlaence --

2~ Idispute. The plea of not gUilty put in here by the
°1

I
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laid down by our code and the legal presumptions of this

code may be applied by this jury, when your Honor gives it

to them.

raises a question as to the existence or nonexistence of

every material fact in the case. It raises the question as

to whether there is to be deduce4 by this jury an inference

from any fact or omiss ion, w'!"ether it would be a fact for or

,,1..'1
1

")

I~

".l\I.·
1;

The jury have a

Is the evidence of this man

Did Darrow--assuming that he did

The witness says he was joking, that he

The fact in dispute is, did that money go

into the hands of Mr. Darrow?

get it, for the purposes of this argument--that be had got

that money from Tveitmoe, what is the inference that should

against bim.

be drawn from it?

was joking, that that was a pleasantry.

Now, let us see. Whenever a party has by his

own act or omission intentionally and deliberately led

another party to believe a partiCUlar thing true, and he

acts upon such belief, he cannot in any litigation arising

Harrington corroborated?

right to know, and the people should have introduced that

fact in evidence, that it was not a joke, that it was true.

And when they failed to show by the·man who received that

$10,000 from the bank, that he gave it to Darrow, when they

failed to show what became of this $10,000 this jury have

a right to know--and they have a right to know whether or not
f:

it was del iberately, int entionally, fraUdulently kept from II
~

the knOWledge and possess ion of this jury; so that the maxi s Ii
,
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out of such declaration, act or omission, be permitted to

,.

And we have a right to show that they deliberately, in-

tentionally, have undertaken before this jury to lead them

stances. We have a right to show this jury, f.irst, that the
I '

had absolute~~ evidence upon that fact, either one way or th
\

other; second, they deliberately, intentionally, stood here

and suppressed that fact, 80 that the truth of the statement

here by Mr. Darrow rr,ay not be allowed to be contradicted

when he goes upon the stand--in other words, we have a right

to establish the facts her e upon wh ich we can build a monu­

ment which in law is declared to be an estoppal, which the

other party has no right to demolish, upon any pri~cipleof

justice and good conscience and fair dealing. We have a

right to buil d around th is defendant such a mot}.ument, such

a d,ibral ter of truth, that the other side "cannot assail it.
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falsify it. now, we have a right to show the circum-

17 to believe that Tveitmoe gave that money to Darrow. And the

have done it with the deliberate intention of making this

jury draw that inference from the facts introduced, when in

fact they knew that the evidence was against them.

And that is good law. It acts upon the con­

science of the individual. If a man accuses me of stealing

a horse, and he brings witnesses to show that upon the

night that the horse was stolen 1 was seen in the neighbor­

hood, and that 1 was seen riding a horse and leading another

one, and if he baa evidence of the fact that the horse th

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26



5802

1 1 was leading was a horse that 1 had gotten somewhere else

2 and purchased honestly, he has no right. to lead a jury to

3 believe by merely giving those circumstances that that

4 I was the horse that was stolen, and that it. was stoJe n by me.

we don't want this jury misled, we don't want this court

in our favor, that they had higher evidence of that fact,

and that they were contented With introducing circumstances

Why, your Honor, a juror sitting, in such a case, after con­

victing a defendant, would have a right to throw his hands

up in horror and say to the Distr ict Attorney, "My God, man,

Now,

We have a right to show, as an item of evidence

why didn't you show us the true facts in this case?"

lLisled.
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1. intentionally and deliberately leading t his jti~y to be-
l

2 lieve that TVeitmoe gave that $lO,OOQ; to Darrow.

3 Now, let us go to another provision of the code. Let's

4 see if there is any law upon the sUbject. There are two

5 classes of indirect evidence. In direct evidence arises.....

6 by inference from other evidence in the case. SectioDl

7 195'7 of the code, states that indirect evidenc e is of

8 two kinds -- inferences and presumptions. Both of them we

9

10

11

have a right to establish here, or the basis for them.·

An inference is a deduction which the reason of the jury

makes from facts proved, without an e.xpressdirection of

12 the law to that effect. An inference is a deduction which

asking this jury to infer that it is not true -- I want

to be I:fJ rfectly plain and frank; I might qualify it, in

other words, but it is always better to speak out just ex:-

We are

How are we go ing to

we want this jUlrY, your Honor, to

this defendant never rec eived it.

show it? We have a right to show it by showing that the

other side knovnJ that, that they were told that; that one

of the principal links in the chaim as ~~ainst this de­

fendant, would have been to put Tveitmoe upon thestand,

infer the fact, and find the inference to be reasonably

dravm from the circumstances, to draw their absolute con­

clusign tlat that money, when it went into the hands of

Tveitmoe in San Francisco, never left his hands, and that

actly what you mean

the reason of the jury makes from facts proved.
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and that when they failed to put him on the stand. when

they suppressed this knowledge that Tveitmoe had given

them. t.hat then these inferenc es may bed rawn from the

faots proved. Therefore. I have proven four propositions.

your Honor: first. tha t t~ -have a right to d raw this

inference from the circumstanoes we are undertaking to

show; seoond, that we have a right to say that they 1-<,- ..

were in possession of this evidence. that it being of a

higher olass of evidenoe. they did. by their own aot. '

introduoe inferior evidenoe. and therefore the presumption

is against them; third. that they are estopped to do it -­

and then oomes the important part· of it. subdivision 5 of

seotion 1963. How are we going to apply this seotion,

subdivision 5, to the circumstanoes here, upon Vihich your

Honor may instruct the jury as a. mat:ter of law that they

have a right absolutely to say from the circumstanoes of

this case that if evidenoe has been suppressed. that that

evideno e would have been against the side suppressing it •

. Let's see. SUbdivision 5: That evidenc e vt'i.lfully sup­

pressed would be adverse if produced -- that evidence will ­

fully suppressed Vlould be adverse if produc ed. We have

a right to show the circumstances upon whioh we shall

build an ins true tion from your Honor oonveying to the jury

that rule of law.' Therefore. it is neoessary fdr us to

show that Tvei tmoe was before the grand jury before this

trial commenced; second. that he Vias examin eel by the
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1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

People there in the presence of one of the prosecuting at­

torneys in this case; third, that he was questioned concern

ing this identical money; fourth, vbat\~as the evidence which

Mr Tveitmoe gave?
in

Your Honor, in a murder case, one of the departments 0 f
'\

this court ,a: ,nineteen-year-old boy was charg ed with

killing a woman vll'ith a knife, and charged at the same

time with shooting a man five times through the breast,

9 and he was upon t rial. Five I EBal g entlemen of the Di s-
10 trict Attorney's office V'Jere pros ecuting him five of

had a right to show, to introduce it inwidence, and. show

the oV'mershipand the possessiom of the man V'mo was shot.

They said they had the rightthey would not produc e it.

We had a right to· show vmather this woman was killed by

one or the oth er of the two men engaged in the room

in that terrible tragedy. The State suppressed it.

to keep it and produc e it \'\hen they s aw prop er . to in tro-

duce it. We insisted -- we begged. No sir; there vas ab-

solutely no relief !Siven to the defense. v.e insisted

that\'f.e had a right to show whose knife that was. Was it

the defendant's, or was it the knife of the man whO had

been shot in the room? That was an issue in the case. We

them; CI.nd at the preliminary examination it appeared that

the knife had been picked up there by the side of the dy­

ing wo~~n within a few minutes after the killing. And

they di d not introduce it inwidence. W3 asked for it;
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Well, when we came to trial, after a citation'of any

number of authorities and I say to your Honor, that I

could cite a. great many authorities here vmre I ready to

present them to your Honor at this time -- v.e cited

authori ties to the effect that \'ve had a right to show the

suppression of evidenc e, and after a considerable citati"on

of authorities, the court ruled that we were entitled to

show that that knife 1R d been suppressed, and after we

got the ruling of the.court, we put witness after wit­

ness upon the stand to show how this knife had passed

from hand to hand,' and aft e rwards \va dug it out 0 f the

safe of the District Attorneyts office, and when the knife

was produc ed, then the wi tnesses came and id entified t l:at

knife, and not only did they identity the knife, but we

showed by the people who identified the knife that it was

the knife of the man who bad been shot. It would have

been an absolute improbability, the most improbable

thing in the world, for that 19-year-old boy in that room

wi th that woman 8_nd that man to have deliberately used

that knife to carve one of the two into eternity, and hav­

ing the knife in his hand, to shoot the other one and use

the two instruments of destruction at the same time.

The:man vas acquitted, and· acquitted properly • .And that

is right. We have a right to show what is the nature and

character of that testimony. ~ have a right to show

why these men did not put Tveitmoe upon the stand.
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a right to shovr why they introduced inferior evidence and

not the highest class of cvidenc e.

Let's see. What right have these gentlemen to stand

here, your Honor, and s a:y to your Honor, t m. t you should

not make an 0 reler? W.ha t right have they got to Obj ec t?

What principle of justice, what rul e of law is there that

justifi es them in obj ecting to every information and every

item of evi denc e which the defense seeks to in troduc e in

evidenc e h ere? What right have they to say that

,this defendant shall not gain possession of every fact and

piece of information, and then offer it in evidenfe? It

may be, your Honor, \IDen he offers it inaridence, that

the state Vlill have a right to obj rot, as they always have

the right to obj ECt to the introduction of cvidenc e. But

have they the right to say to this court that this de­

fendant shaJ.l not have the informa. tion?

In that case that I cited to your Honor heretofore -­

let me read again,your Honor, \'hat the court say. It

is in the case of Aaron Burr, the court deciding upon that

question by Chief Justice Marshall. Now, Chief Justice

Marshall says: uHow, if a paper be in possession of the

opposite partyU -- Now, It'me say, this paper is not in

the possession of the opposite party. They have no con­

trol over this paper, your Honor. They have no control

over thiswidence. They are no more entitled to look at

than we are in any particular case, where there is no
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reason for the application of that rule. They have no

right to object. They have no greater rights than the de­

fendant. They occupy no higher pla.ne of jurisprudence than

the defendant. The law must equally balanced _:... balanced

between man and man) between the People of th e state of

California and the poorest and most humble defendant.

They have no right to obj ect here. They do not represent

anyone here in obj ecting to this. Here is a wi tness upon

the wi tn eBS stand) c"nd vIe re:::r, "We 'want you to produc e

it. lf But even if it were in their possession) ltNow) if a

paper be in po ssession of opposite plrty, vhat statement

of its. contents or applicability can be expected from the

person who claims its production) he not precisely kno~rlng

its contents? If the opposite party be required to pro­

duce his books on a particular subject, it is not necessar,y

that the entries on those books should be stated in order t

entitle the applicant to give motion. He cannot be expect­

ed to make such a statement•. It' bas always been deemed

sufficient to describe the paper required, to &press its

general purport) and to state its materiality to the case

in some degree, even when its contents are knovm. When

a paper is in possession of one party, it is completely in

his pOVJer J and is required by the oth er, ver,y strong

reasons must be given to justify its being withheld, if

it have any relation to the case. Before a court would

make a decisive order in such a case, it certainly
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receive reasonable satisfaction of the probable materiality

of the evidence asked for and refused, and of its relation

to the pending controversy; but the information to be

u

Because the averment is that

required must depend on the nature of th e case.

They go) on and say, "CriDlinalcases, it is true, are not

be insufficient; and why?

possesses a paper which might be required by the defense.

If the executive possesses a paper which is really believed

by the accused to be material to his defense, ought it to

be 'withheld? The question will recur, is it really mater­

ial to hisdefense? The onlyelTidence that can be receiv­

ed on this point is from the party himself, and he has made

his affidavit to its materiality. But that is said to

fense with as much liberality and tenderness as the case

willad':mit. The prosecutor is the representative of

the government, the government acts as a party through

the agency of the attorney, who directs and manages the

prosecution on behalf of government. If theeebe a paper

in the possession of theececutive, which is not of an

official nature, he must stand, as respects that paper,

in nearly the same situation ,nth any other individual \vho

the letter may be.material in the defense. Until the

course of the prosecution shall be fullydeveloped, it

not be in the power of the accused to make a more posi-

provided for; but courts will always apply th e rul as of

widence to criminal prosecutionJso as to treat the de-,
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1 give averment. The importanc e of th e letter to the de-

2 fense may depend on the testimony adduced by the pro secutor.

3 :x: :x: :x: :x: "Let it be suppo sed that the

4 letter may not contain anything respecting the person now

5 before the court. Still it may respect a vritness mater-

money.

26 him to Mr DarroVl or not? That is, what did he do with th
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ial in the case and become important by bearing on his tes-

timony. It

If there is anything in the testimony of Tveitmoe here,

material to thedefendant here, to hisdefense, isn't it

upon the same plane and simple principles of justice that

this defendant should be entitled to see it, and, if it

be material to offer it in evidenfe? .Then the question

of materiality may come before your Honor.

. Now, this is Chief Justice Marshall, Chief Justice lI~r­

shall of the SUpreme Court, a man who is held in great res­

pect by weryone and wery jurist allover the v.orld.

ttl do not think that the accused ought to be prohibit ed

from seeing the letter, but, if it should be thought

prop er, etc."

Now, here is a witness upon thestand, and he has notes
,

of the testimony given before the grand jj1ry by Mr Tv ei1tmo e.•

We say, and we con tend .that the other side dares not deny

it, that his testimony bears directly upon an issue in

this case -- was that money which was paid to ~eitmoe at

the bank on the 2nd cay of September, 1911, delivered by
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may be given, as was given, that that is passing the buck

Now, your Honor, in addition to that an answer

advice of his counsel who represents Mr. Tveitmoe in the

-- you ride it,

In addition to

Here is a goat

this case we could not r ide it, anyJ::ow.

the stand refused absolutely, basing his refusal upon the

they say to the defense.

Well, 1 am not a good goat rider, and 1 don't

propose 'to ride the:-goat unless 1 am compelled to; and in

We said that the other side is suppressing that evidence.

VIe have a right, 1 say, to show that fact, that that evidenc

is of a higher nature, we have a right to show to the jury

what the evidence is, of the nature and cbaracter of it.

over to the other side.

showing your Honor, for the purposes of showing that it is

impossible for us to produce the witness Tveitmoe, we offer

to show your Honor by positive testin,ony ttat we got Mr.

Tvei tITioe down here for the purpose of puttir..g him upon the

stand; that Mr. Tvei tmoe in answer to a request to go upon

ffatter of indictments pending against IHm at Indianapolis.

We offer to show your Honor tha t then upon the refusal we

insisted upon the attorneys coming here for a conference.

We offer to show your Honor that after that conference ;.1r.

Tveitmoe was absolutely prohibited from testifying, and

that he said that if he went upon the stand he would rot in

jail before he would utter a word that would enable the

other side to crosB-exarriine him--not so much concerning
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Styles and Jane Doe--how can it be said whether they do not

merits of this case, but concerning, your Honor, matters .1

which may be brought against ;{.r. Tveitmoe in other jurisdic-
,

tiona, and 1 say even in this very jurisdiction. fe can

show your Honor that in this indictment here bafore this

court it is charged that M. A. Schmidt, J. B. McNamara,

J. J. McNamara, William Caplan, John IDoe--the old familiar

cr imirlal, John Doe and his cous in Richard Roe, and John

1

2

3

4'

5

6

7

8

9 refer to.:;-. Tvei tmoe as being one of the persons? Mind

10 you, your Honor, we don't have to go into inference, or

11 into opinions about this. The record here showe, your

12 Honor, the record absolutely shows here, that one of these

13 Does or Roes might be Jane, and Jane might be the one refer

14 ing absolutely to Tveitmoe. 1 would not blame Mr. TveitILoe

15 and this court could not have the power to make llir. Tve itmoe

16 testify here for or against this defendant upon the witness

17 stand here, except if the people of the State of California

18 put him upon the witness stand, your Honor. They would hav

19 a right to limit that examination to one point: "Mr. Tveit­

20 Itoe~ did you get $10,000 there from the bank on the 2nd day

of September, 19111 A--Yes.21

22 to Mr. ~arrow? A--Yes •"

Q-_Did you give that money

They would have a right to a top

23 right there, and nothing that he said would involve him

24 or could be used against him in any case. But if we put

25 i,ir. Tveitmoe upon the witness stand and asked him the fact,

261 the other side would have a right to say, "7hat

and we have a right to show
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to this conspiracy~ .ay way of showing the relation ofMr

Tveitmoe to the case, and then your Honor would have a

right to let them ask all those circumstances.

Now. your Honor. your Honor c an 0 see how .imp0 rtantit was

I( "Q -- Now, Mr Tveitmoe, they y.ould say to him. didn't you

know Schmidt and Caplin. and all these defendants? 0 Were

you not a party to the conspiracy or to any ac t which re­

sulted in the explosion that wrecked the Times and sent

so many people into eternity? Didn't you know the defend­

ant so and so. and didn't he say so and so, and di. dn't

you know about the transportin~ of the Qynamite from

Are you not one 0 f th e parties

off the wi. tness stand. And
it

sworn evidence. that was ab-
o I\.

to intr?duce the fact, the pri~

for that man to be kept

we offer to show that by

solutely beyond ourpower

cipal fact. first. that TVei tmoe never gave Mr Darrow any

part. parcel or cent of that $10.000; second. tlat Tveit­

moewent before the grand jury and testified under oath as

a witness for the prosecution, that he got this $10,000,

and that- he never gave it to Mr Darrow. and said he had a

portion of those moneys still at his command, and we of­

fered to show. your Honor. that it is by the most indirect

way that we have ascertained tho se facts.

MR'ROGERS: We expret to call witnesses, if your Honor

plEase. to show the facts. and we would not like

ruling upon the general matter until we make our showing.

-one state into another?

26

25

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24



5814­

1 MR FORD: Have you finished your argument, Mr Rogers?

2 MR ROGERS: Well, I don't know yat.

3 THE COURT: We ,;vill adj oum until 2 0' clock now.

4 And tmreupon the jury was duly admonished and a re-

5 cess taken until 2 o'clock P.M.

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

581~

Afternoon session, JUly 29th, 1912, 2 P.M.

Defendant in court 'lli th coun sal ..

J ••r .. PETEHMICHEL on th e stand ..

THE COURT: Mr Rogers, you vanted to complete the recorcit,

I beli ere, before th e cou It rul sa on this motion.

MR ROGERS: I purpose to ca 11 1.{r Appel. He has not come

yet. The question noVi pellding, of course, does not

raise the question as it ought to be raised.

MR FORD: That is the only cp. etion that is before the

court, 0 f course.

MR ROGERS: He can suspend his ruling and allo~Y me to make

my offer.

MR FORD: Well, letts decide one question at a time.

MR ROGERS: Well, of course, the relevancy and materiality

of this testimony now offered, depends, to some ex:tent,

upon the testimony to be ~feredincompletionof the en­

ti re I'ffer.

THE CoURI.': Your offer to show -- just state what your of-

fer is.

MR ROGERS: ltV cffer is to show that the District Attorney

called a. A .. Tvei tmoe to the stand in th e course of this

trial as their witness --

THE CaURI.': The recodrshows that al ready.

lfER ROGERS: The record shoVis that alreadY; that

ed him no questions beyound his name an d his age
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1 residence; thereupon dismissed him. That his testimony

THE COURT: You don't af'fer to show these things by llr

Appel's testimony, do you?

MR ROGERS: I offer to show that after his dismissal by

the prosecution and their failure to call him, that it is

a part cr the record in this case t:mt the District Attor­

ney has said in open court, in a statement made before

the jury, that the r eason' he did not in~errogate him vas
will

he desired to cross-examine him. I furtherl'shOw t1E.t O.A.

Tveitmoe is under.indictment for matters and things con-

e erning the :McNamara cases and the issues involved in the

McNamara cases in Indianapolis, in the United States

possession.

was taken previous to his calling upon the stand, I think

previous to this case being commenc ed; subsequent to th e

indictment, and at that time hevRs inquired of as to the

disposibion of the $10',000 cash or bills, which has been

referred to in the testimony of the witnesses at this

trial, namely, the cashier of the Angm; London-Paris Bank,

and the tellerthereof; that he was in<pired of concerning

the disposition of that money, and at that time before the

grand jury being interrogated by the District Attorney,

stated that he did not give that monElf to 1Ir Darrow, and

that Mr Darrow never received it fran him;tb.hat he had

t7500 thereof, or approximate~ that sum, or a consider­

able and SUbstantial portion of the ~ount still in his
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for that district of Indiana, and has been indicted here

in the United States Court for this district for partici­

pation in the }{cNamara case or in the matter which led up

to the Irc Narnara case. I will further show that he is

intended to be the John Doe referred to in the McNamara

indic tment~ ,according to his. understanding and belief.

That when we attempted to call him to the stand he re­

fused to take the stand and be cross-examined, having been

advised by counsel and by your Honor's ruling tmt he

might be interrogated conc emning elery aspect and f ea-

ture and every material matter of his connection with the

lrcNamara case, and that that cross-m:a.mination was to be

held in th e pr esenc e 0 fMr .Oscar Lawl er t his pro secutor t

in the United States Court of this district, and assistant

in the prosecution of the United States Court of the Indiana

District, and tha,t the cross-examination would be used

against him in his own case, and t tat he tookadvice of

counsel, and that, upon advice of counsel, he refused to

be called to the stand;refused to testify, so he would

not be cross-examin ed in matters relating to his cases be­

fore his cases came to trial, and that his counsel, upon

being sent for, and coming here in consultation with us,

advised him to our knowledge, and according to their

statements to us, and his statements to us, tmt they

would not permit him to be interrogated in this case, upon

the ground that the cross-examination sought by the Dis-
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witness stand

THE COU HI': Then, I understand you 0 !'fer to bring the

matter within the ruling laid dwwn in the Bird case cited

this morning, by which Mr Tveitmoe's refusal to take the

trict AttomeyvRs not in good f ai th, but 'Was intended,

as a matter offact, to be used against Mr Tveitmoe in the

cases pending against him, not only in the United states

Court, but possibly, if the agreement is violated, he might

be prosecuted in this court.

he stated to us, if call ed to the wi tness stand, he _'VOul d

yeS sir, and that his counsel advised us, and}1fR ROGERS:

1
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12 I
refuse to testify, upon the ground that his cross- ex:amina-

ter. If that offer should be made good, it will not change

tion would be detrimental to his own case, and to his own

interests and jeopardize his own rights and his own liber­

ty, and he bro~sht his counsel fram San Francis~o here to

discuss the matter.

13

14

15

16

17

18
THE COURT: If that is the offer I can dispose of the mat-

19t EL rule of law, as I see it.
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But, 1 am satisfied from theat th~t time to do so.

that auch portion of· it as was used by Mr. Tvei tmoe was u

Tveitmoe testified before the grand jury that he did not

give any of that ~10,000 referred to in the testimonYJ to

testimony of ;~rr. O. A. Tveitmoe given before the grand jury

at a date subsequent to the indictment now being tried,

You viill be allowed to make your record complete at such

time as you may be advised and which, and you can ask leave

testimony of this witness J refreshing his recollection

careful attention 1 have given to this very important

~attor this morning--it has been most ably preseritedJ but

1 am satisfied that the circumstances as presented do not

justify the court in changing the ruling and order made a

few days ago when this same subject matter came up. The

offer by the defendant to introduce a transcript of the

MR. ROGERS. 1 o~fer in evidence J if your Honor please, the

which testimony is in the hands of the witness on the

stand, and which offer is obje~d to by the District At­

torney, after hearing the matter fully presented J the court

sustains the objection of the District Attorney, and the
"-

defendant has· leave to amplify the record in the manner

he has indicated by his statement at any time he desires

before the close of the trial.

from the notes wh ich .he made at the time, to show that

Mr. Darrow, but ontte contrary retained it himself, a large

portion of it, a"substantial portion of it, to wit, about

$7500 or thereabouts J which is still in his possession,
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1 by the defense in the expenses of the defense in San

2 Francisco. 1 further offer that for the purpose of showin

3 that he so testified before the grand jury when interrogate

4 I by the prosecution.

5 THE COURT. Any objection?

6 MR. FREDERICKS. Why, certainly, your Honor. It is the sam

7 thing.

8 THE COURT. Make your objection, 60 the record will be com­

9 plete.

10 lAR. FREDERICKS. We object to the introduction of any such

11 testimony, as being secondary eviden ee, hearsay, incom­

12 petent, irrelevant and immater ial •

13 THE COURT. You object upon the same grounds as the objec­

14 tion to the previous question?

15 I MR· FREDERICKS· Yes, your Honor.

16 1 THE COURT. The question is substantially the same. The

17 objection will be sustained.

18 MR. ROGERS. (To :.lr. Darrow) ;vIr. Darrow, do you waive your

19 constitutional right to the right to cross-examine O. A.

20 Tveitmoe upon the stand and to the confutation of such

21 testimony by the introduction of testimony in your behalf?

MR • DARROW. Yes.

THE COURT Of course, 1 assumed that-- ~

MR. ROGERS. i,~r. Peterm jchel, kindly refer ther e to your

notes and ascertain whether or not 1.1r. Tveitrroe did not

testify befor e the grand jury, when interrogated by the

District Attorney, and in the presence of the District

22
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1 torney, yours elf and the members of the grand jvry who

2 were present, that he did not give any portion of that

3 ~lO,OOO obtained by him from the London, Paris & American

4 I Bank, whatever bank that was, to :.ir. Darrow, but, on the

5 contrary, that he had it in his possession at that time,

6 with the exception of a small portion thereof, which had

7 been expended for the purposes of the defense in San Fran-

8 c ieeo?

9 MR. FORD· Again we object upon the ground it is incompetent

10 not legal evidence or evidence at all, and if the court will

11 hear me just a moment, subdivision 5 has been read--

12 THE COURT. State your objection. It is SUbstantially the

13 same, question, but 1 want you to make the record clear 0

14 MR • FORD. 1 des ir e to make our pos it ion c I ear to your

15' Honor.
I

16 THE COURT. 1 think it is perfectly clear.

17 MR. FORD. And to the jury. While it is clear to the Court,

18 1 haventt the slightest doubt of that, it is charged against

19 UB that we have suppressed evidence--

20 THE .COURT. Oh, you can ar gue that to the jury When the

21 time comes. This is an argument to the co~r~.

22 ques tion for the court now.

This is a

23 MR. FORD. Objected to s imply on the ground it is incom-

24 petent and immater ial •

25 THE COURT. Obj ect ion sus tained.

26 I ~::R. ROGERS. Exc ept ion. (To the VI it nese • ) Refer now to
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A February 16, 1912.

MR • ROGERS. Q Refer to the record and state whether or

gating him?

MR. roRD. Objected to as incompetent, irrelevant and

not, let bim state.

not a representative of the District Attorney's office was

there present at the time his testimony was taken, interro-

your notes taken of the testimOITf of O. A. Tveitmoe, and

state whether or not at the time he testified, he did not

testify of and concerning, in answer to questions of the

District Attorney, of and concerning the disposition or

disposal of the $10,000 received by him by the cashing of

a check at the London, Paris & American Rank, whatever the

name of that bank may be, in San Franc isco, wh ich was a

check upon the Riggs National Bank of Washington for

$10,000 payable to C. S. Darrow?

MR • FORD. Objected to.

MR. ROGERS. On or about September 2nd.

MR. FORD. Obj ected to on th e grOtmd it is hear say,

incompetent, not legal evidence.

THE COt'RT. Objection sustained.

MR. ROGERS. Exception. NOW, on what date did he

testify before the grand jury?

MR • FORD. Objected to on the Bame grounds--irre1evant,

incompetent and immaterial.

THE COURT. 1 think that is already in therecord. If it is
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1 terial whether there was or not, the ,evidence being in­

2 competent •

3 THE COURT. Objection sustained.

4 MR. ROGERS. Exception. Q Was Mr. Ford there?

5 MR • FORD. Obj ected to on the same grounds.

"

'\
\

Q State whether or not, referrin

deposit box in San Francisoo, in his possessio

MR • ROGERS. Except ion.

TFE COURT. Obj ection sus tained •

at the time he appeared before the grand jury?

to the record, ~~ Tveitmoe testified that he had a sub­

stantial portion of that amount of money received from the

cashing of this check of $10,000 on September 2nd, or there

abouts, at the London, Paris & American Bank, the check

being upon the Riggs National Bank, payable to the order of

Clarence S. Darrow--state whether or not he did not state

he had about $7500 or thereabouts of that amount in ,a,

safety

MR • FORD. Objected to on the ground it is hearsay, incom­

petent and immaterial.

THE COURT. Objection sustained.

IviR • ROGERS. Except ion. We VI ill withdraw the witnes8 •
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1

2

W. d. FORD, recalled on behalf of the de­

fense, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAUINATION

3 THE WITNESS: I have been sworn before.

4 THE COURT: Mr Ford has been sworn before. . Proceed.

5

6

me --

your p resenc e -- .

MR KEETCH: We object to that on the same ground -- pardo

State whether or not you were present before the

Didn,t Mr Tveitmoe testify before the grand jury, inQ

Q

MR ROGERS: You a re assistant District Attorney, are you,

Mr Ford? A yeS sir.

MR ROGERS: It is preliminary, entirely.

MR FREDERICKS: That would not make any differenc ewhe-

ther it is or not, it is immaterial, and the court can see

what it is preliminary to.

THE COURT: Objection sustained.

MR ROGERS: Did you interrogate O. A. Tveitmoe before the

grand jury?

IvfR KEETCH: We obj ect to that on the same ground.

THE COURT: The obj ection is sustained.

grand jury 0 l' t his county on or about the 16th day of Feb­

ruary of this y ERr?

I,fRKEETCH: We obj ~t to tmt as incompetent, irrelevant

and immaterial.
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-- didn't Arr Tveitmoe testify in your pre-

2 sence ttathe didn't give any portion of the $10,000 re­

3 ceived by him for the cashi~ of the check on the Riggs

4 I National Bank, payable to the order of Clarence S. Darrow,

5 on or about September 2nd; didn't give any portion of that

6 money to Mr Darrow, but, on the contrary, retained it him­

7· self, with the exception of an amount there which he had

8 expended for the purpose of the defense in San Fran-

9 cisco?

10 1rR KEETCH: We object to that on th e same ground.

11 THE COURT: The obj action is sustained.

121m ROG ERS : ~c ept i on.

13 Q, State whether or not you did not hERr him testify to

14 that effect before the grand jury?

Obj ac ted to on th e same ground.

Obj action sustained.

15 I tfR KEETCH:

16 1 TEE COU"S.T:

17 MR ROGERS: EXception. State whether or not he did not

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25\
26 !

I

testify he had in his possession at the time of his ex­

~nation, in the neighborhood of $?500J of that $10,000,

the same being in San Francisco under his control and in

a safe deposit box.

MR KJlETCH: Obj ectad to upon the fa11le ground.

THE COURT: Obj ection sustain ed.

UR ROGERS: Exc ep.tion. You called 1fr Tveitmo e to the 'Nit­

ness stand, did you not?

IvrR KEETCH: Objected to on the same ground.
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1

Further. the record is the best evidence.

2 THE COURT: Obj action sustained.

3 MR ROGERS: kc eption. You were subpoenaed to produc e here

4 I certain documents and papers. Have you produced them?

5 MR KEETCH: The same obj ection. '

6 THE COURT: Well, that is a different question.

7 MR KEETCH: under the rul e 0 f the court --

8 MR FREDERICKS: A different question, but it is the same

9 obj ection.

10 THE COURT:" Here is a witness subpoenaed to produc e cer­

11 tain documents and papers.

12 MR FREDERICKS: Well, ,I presume it is preliminary.

13 THE COURT: That is a question t tat ought to be answered.

14 MR FREDERICKS: The obj ection to t lRt, I think should be

15
1 that if he,'\B.S subp0Bnaed the subpoena would probably be

16 I the best evidence.

17 THE COUID': Oh. yes. it probably is.

18 MR FREDERICKS: He might

19 MR 'ROGERS: All right, I will withdraw the qu astion.

20 Were you served with a copy of this subpoena this mo ming,

21 mich document I now show you? A I acknowl edge the ser­

22 vice of it. You have shown it to me.

23

24

Q F.ave you produc ed the document s desc ribed in sue h sUb-

poena.

THE COURL': Let me see it.25

26 MR F;-'.EDERI eRE : We obj act to the question. The cou:::,t
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1 will read the' subpoena and see the reason of the· obj 6::­

2 tion. We obj ect to the question on the ground it is in­

3 fompetent, irrelevant 'and immaterial.

4 THE COURT: Well, this brings up sqUarely the application

5 made thismoming before Mr Petermichel \'as put on the stand

6 under section 1000.

7 MR KEETCH: yes sir.

8 W":FORD: And on that point, your Honor, we are'p repared

9 toargue the obj ection.

10 l!R ROGERS: Then you can come down and argue and go back

11 and talk again. (Discussion. )-

12

13

14

MR FORD: If the court plsase, we' object to the produc­

tion of the documents called for, among other grounds, and

at the IX" esent time call eel for in the sUbpoena on the

15 ground that the defendant -- that they have come into

16, the possession, if th~ are in the possession of the wit-

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

ness, that they have come into the possession of such wit­

ness in an official capacity, and as representing the pro­

secution, and that no notice has been served, as requi red

by law, if section 1000 applies to a criminal case; and,

second, that section 1000 does not apply to this case nor

to the particular documents \vhich are called for in the

SUbpoena.

THE COURT: Let's· put aside the question of notice. Notice

is a reasonable notice, and unless there is some reason to

the ..contrary,the court will assume that thenotice given

at 10 o'clock this morning is sufficient notq~~~
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ed in court this morning nor in the subpoena if it be con-

MR FORD: As far as time is cone erned, bUt not as contents1

2'

3

and materiality. Th ere is no averment in the notice serv-

4' strued as a notice, Which shows the materiality of the doc~....
5

6

7

ments applied for. There must be some showing -- and

nothi~g discloses the identity of the particular documents

sought. There must be some showing made to this court that

There is no ShO'Ningthe defendant is entitled to them.

8 I the documents are material,. so your Honor may jUdge whether

9\
10

11

12

13

14

15 I
16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25 I

26 !

I

any of those documents are of any value to the defendant or

that he intends to produce them in evidence. The defendant

in any criminal case cannot compel the prosecution to dis­

close the evidence Which it has in its possession, if there

is any document which theydesire to introduce in evidence,

then it is up to them to serve a notice,describe the docu­

ment which they desire.t 0 produc e in evi denc e, and then if

the prosecution refuses to introduce that document or to

produce it for them, they may introduce secondary evidence

of its contents and a recalcitrant witness under such cir-

cumstances

THE COURT: J"ust a moment.

MR FORD: And a recalcitrant witness under such circum-
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1 even d-esires to int roduce them in evidenc e. All in, the

2

3

world t rat this amount s to, your Honor, is to fin d out

\Yhat evidence the people, the prosecution has in its pos-

4' session, and in case that section 1000 of the Code of Civil

compel the prosecution t.o disclose what evidence they have

tion and n wer did have any application to a criminal case

bill of discovery in equity proceedings, and is so treated

Procedure, which, by the way, is merely a means adopted by

our COde of Civil Procedure as a substitute for the old

has no a.pplica-in all the decisions under that section

against a. defendant, to compel the prosecution to inform

the defendant of all the evidence, and our courts have

held that thE&" could not do that, and there is a wise rea-

and the history 0 f the section will show it.

Attempts have been made in this state by defendants to

5

6

7

8

9

10

111
12

13

14

15

16
I son, a 'wise cause for theex:istence of such a law. If the

17 prosecutiongather evidence to prevent perjury being com-

18 I mitted in a trial of a criminal offense, if it prepare for

19\ the cross-examination of witnesses who might be produced

upon th e stand and the defendant in a criminal ca.se can

compel the prosecution to give them its material to the

defendant and his witnesses, it might be easy for the de­

fendant and his accomplices in the cannrdssion of a crime,

to make up a s tory which Vlould defy impeaChment, to make a

story which would bear some sembla.nc e of trut h, and yet

in accord with the evidence tlat is in the possession of

20

21

22

23

24

25 I

26 !
I
I
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3 MR ROGERS: Will your Honor p ermi t me -- Mr Ford c on-

4' senting -- I do not beli we, if your Honor pleases, that

5 the conditionss of the evidence are sufficient at this

6 time to justify the argument being made upon this ques-

7 tion. I desire to produe e Mr Appel as a wi tness upon one

8 feature of the matter. He has just come in and I do not

9

10

14
I

15 I

16
1

17
1

18

19

20

21

22

23

think, if Mr FOrd \nII permit me to suggest, that condi­

tions of the record are such that we ought to attempt to pre­

sent the matter fully t because I intended to int errogate

both him and yr Appel further in order to present certain

consid erations of e vi denc e in testimony which Vlill put the

matter before your Honor more squarely than has been put

by the mere asking if he has produc ed t he document sunder

the subpoena decus tecum.

THE COURI': All right, Mr Appel. Go on.

HORACE H. ,APPEL, a witness callf,ed on be­

half' 0 f the defendant, 'being first duly sworn, testified as

follows :

MR ROGERS: Your name is Horace H. Appel? A yes sir.

24
1 Q

25 I Q,

261
I Q
!

Attorney at l·aw? A yes sir.

Practicing in these courts? A yes sir.

How long have you 'teen admit ted, 1fr Appel? A
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1 don't remember.

One of counsel for defendant in this-case? A yes

2

3

Q

Q

A good many years. A A Ii tt.le (N er 20 y €Ell'S.

4' sir.

5 Q- You understand the matter Which I shall present

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

to you) and I will therefore not int errogate you by too

many questions.

l.fR FREDERICKS: But we do not) Mr Rogers.

llR ROGERS: You possibly will in a few moments. Will you

please explain and state why the defendant has not called

yr Tveitmo e to th e wi tness stand?

MR FORD: To that we o'td rot on the groUlirll it is im ompa­

tent) irrelevant and immaterial; counsel has a right to

14 I call a witness to thestand) they had the right to call1fr
15 I

Tveitmoe to the stand and then it is for Mr Tvei tmoe to re-

16

17

18 I
I

19

20

fuse to testify) to give his eK:c:use. It certainly is incom­

pet ent for th e wi tness on the stand to t estif'y to hearsay

testimony) a.nd that is all that Mr Appel could do at this

time; he could testify what he might have heard other

people say) t rose other peopl e not being unler oath, not
21 i being here for cross-examination. And if Mr Tveitmoe vrere

bere, he v.ould at least be under oath, a.nd we Vlould have

an opportunity to cross-examine him) and t.hat is the pro­

per way for a wit-ness to decline) and that is the only yay

that a matter of that sort can get into the l' ecord. If

your Honor Vli'pll recall) Mr Tvei tmoe "'Jason the stand, he

22

23

24
1
I

25 I
I

26 ;
i

I
I
I
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was asked several questions) and then when VI8 demanded

that th e section of the code be read to him. that an argu­

ment arose) and he VIas El.llowed to lEave the stEl.nd.

4 I The pretecution at that time might have proceeded to €leamine

5

6

him if they so desired. but VIe did not desire to do so) and

we have stated our reasons here several tim as) simply that

7 ! we consilered him an accomplice and unless the section was

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21 I
22 I

I

23

24

25 I
26 I

I

read which would prevent him from being pro secuted in this

case) and further t unl ElSa we have an opportunit~ to cross­

er..amine him. we did not believe that we could present the·

full truth to the jury) and did not proceed with the ex-

amination.
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question.

a statement made by Mr. Tvei tmoe outside of Borre court, out-

side of a court trying the same cause, the same proceed~ng,

outside of the method provided by law for the reading of a

If our pos it ion is

ii-hen counsel asked Mr. Biddi

That when they seek to introduce

mony cannot be introduced.

objection to the testimony which is being sought to be intr ­

duced here, it is impossibly to lay a foundation for it.

MR. ROGERS. If your Honor pleases, it comes with somewhat

of a surprise to me that it is claimed

Now, for this witness to testify as to the reasons why Mr.

Tveitmoe did not take the stand would be purely hearsay and

incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial, and no four~ation

laid for the introduction of the other testimony, because

there can be no founiation laid.lfWe are corredt in our

Our contention is this:

are seeking to do at the present time.

deposition, we contend that such testimony is hearsay, is

not competent, is not legal evidence and no foundation can

ever be laid for the introduction of hears2W testimony., there

is no such thing known to the law as a foundation for the

introduction of hearsay testimony; and that is all they

correct, it is hearsay testimony and there is no necessity

of lay ing the foundat ion; if we ar e wrong th er e is st ill

less reason for laying the foundation, because they can

themselves introduce it with:Jut laying this foundation, and'

for the reasons stated, we object to the testimony and the

4p 1

2

3

4'

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

261

I
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for the jury to retire while it is being read.

we would ask that that be read to him anyway.

"tar. !i' eder icka. . Just a moment, your Honor.

makes an ar gument then Mre Fr eder ieks aaya--breaking into

the argument, "Just a moment, your Honor. There is a point

1 would 1 ike to consult.

Now, in order that the record, which

That is somewhat long ;:md it might

1 see no occasion for reading this." M~ Appe

1 think the section explains it, your Honor, an"Mr. For d •

"Mr. Dar row.

call M~ Tveitmoe?

"The Court.

to relate a statement made by J B McNamara to him,

Biddinger, before Mr. Farrow ever knew that there waa such

a person as J. B. McNamara--he didn't know he was on earth,

and yet they asked for that te8t imony • Now, 1 have not

asked him what :,lr. Tvei tmoe said to Mr. Appel. 1 have not

interrogated the witness as to Why :I!r. Tvei tmoe did not take

the stand; the question is, why did not the defendant

has been inadvertently misstated, may be correctly ui:der~

stood, 1 call your Honor'S attention to it, page 2242, Sir.

"0. A. Tveitmoe, a Witness called on behalf of the people

having first been duly sworn, testified as follows: i.ir. Ford,

1 ask to read Section 1324 of the Penal Code to the Witness

"THE COURT. ~r. Tveitmoe, at the request of the District At­

torney 1 will read you Section 1324 of the Penal Code of

tb is s tate which reads as follows:

"Mr. Appel. WaiLtta moment, your Honor.

1

2

:8 3

4'

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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1 "~rr. Fr eder icks. Jus t a moment." You see, Mr. Fredericks

9 "Mr. Fredericks. Do you want to get away this afternoon?

10 "The Wi tneS8. Yes, 1 intend to get away this afternoon.

"Mr. Fredericks. What time does your train go?

"The Witness. 1 guess about 6 0 1 clock.

noon?8

2 ·ciidn l t want this to get away from him. (Heading) "We

3 would like a little further time to consider thiamatter.

4 I there is another witness 1 can put on.

5 "Mr. Ford. We ask that he be considered under sUbpoena.

6 "The Court. All right.

7 "The Wi tness. Mr. Fredericks, do you want me here this after

13

14

15

16

"Mr. Fredericks. 1 will see you at 2 o'clock.

"The Wi tnes6.. All right. (The witness leaves the stand. )

"Mr. Fredericka. 1 am not sure we have another witness."

Now, that is the situation. Now, 1 asked this Witness

17 why the defendant did not call [,Ir. Tvei trr.oe. It is always

18 proper, if your Honor pleases, to show why a Witness is not

19 called. He may say, ":Ar. 'I'veitmoe was stricken with paralys

20 and could not talk." He might say, ";,;:. Tvei tmoe was absent

here, if your Honor please, for an hour, listening to the

might, and the question would call for such an answer:

He propably wont, but nevertheless he21

22

23

24

from the state."

"Why dn not the defendant call Jlr. Tveitmoe?" We will

,
I

I
standi

I

by us. Now we purpose to spike that gun right now,

have a right to do it. We have a right to take from the

statements of counsel as to Why Mr .. Tvei tmoe was not
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1 ~he ability to argue that we did not call Mr. Tveitrnoe becaus

2 hie testimony was againat us. We have a right to show that

3 his testinony .... ould have been against the prosecution; that

4 the reason they took him off the stand was because it was

5 against them, ~nd they merely wanted to cross-examine him

6 about the general aspects of the case, and we have a right

7 to show we do not call a ' material witness in order that

8 they may not argue against us on that proposition, and 1

9 put the straight question, tlWhy didn't you call Mr. Tveitmoe1 t1

10

11

12

13

14

15 I

16 I
17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26



5837

5a 1 MR. FREDERICKS. Now, maY,it please the court, questions of

2 fact are determined by the testimony of witnesses on the

3 witness stand. Each side has the same process as the

4 I other side to bring their witnesses and compel them to·

5 testify. Whether Mr. Tveitrnoe wanted to corne or doesn't want

in the question of determining the gUilt or innocence of

this defendant in the manner in which the defense attempts

to come, the process is in the hands of the defendant to

compell him tO,take the witness stand and then if he refusea

devising

to make it, and it cannot be made an issue in that way.

Whatever counsel will argue is a matter to be taken up at

the time of argument. We may argue one way and the defensel

has an equal opportunity to put in an equal nu~ber of hours I

and make more eloquence in arguing Why he was not put 0rneat:oels

stand for some other reason, and they can give as many ~ .

I

and if any of them appeal to the jury, that is the t irrle to

use it, and the occasion to apply it, but this staterrent-­

an answer to this question by this Witness would be merely

argumen5 to the jury as to why a witness was not called.

If the' defense can do that the prosecution can do it, for

as their ingenuity and eloquence is capable of

to answer re may state to the court and jury why he refuses

to answer, rather than to state it to his attorney and have

his attorney state it to ;'.lr. Appel or hiIEelf to state it to

Mr. Appel and Mr. Appel state it to the jur.y. The question as

to why Mr. Tve i tmoe didn 1 t take the stand is not an issue

6

7

8

9

10

111
12

13

141
15

1
I

16 I

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

261
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1

2

3

prosecution has an equal right in the matter of bringing

witnesses onthe stand, and immediately, your Honor, what

would be the result? If we didntt call a witness and they

4' put another witness on the stand to testify why that witness

5 said he didn't want to be called, it is immaterial, it is

6 irrelevant, it is incompetBnt to any issue refore this

7 court; it is hearsay, and if there are any other vices or

8 :rcflJ..a.c.±~s known to fu gal objection I would add them too.

9

10

There is absolutely no reason or warrant in law or pro­

cedure for such a question at such a time.

11 MR • FORD· If the Court please, it is per featly 8ilRrent

12 that if this witness is allowed to anSW'8r this question

13 that he wi 11 answer it in one way, namely, that for the

14 reasons already stated by Mr. Rogers by way of argument that

15 they could not put him onthe stand, his attorney would not

16 let him do it, on the other hand--

17 THE COURT. The court is not interested in what the answer

18 will be.

19 MR. FORD. By way of illustration, by way of argument, your

26 THE COURT. That question has just been covered, Mr. Ford.

HonOT. Now, if it is admissible for the defendant to put I

one of the attorneys on the stand to testify Why they didn'ti

call a Witness, would we be permitted to also put a witness I
on the stand and show tra. t the reason we didn't put Mr. 1

Tveitmoe on the s.tand was that we believed him to rn an

accompl ice of the defen dan t inthe commiss ion of this cr im

20

21

22

23

24

25
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don't want to curtail this argument, but I think it is

2 taking a great deal more time than we ought. Captain

3 Fredericks presented that line of thought.

4 I MR. FORD. 1 don, t think the situation of our putting a

5 witness upon the stand has been presented.

6 THE COURT. I heard it said.

7 MR. ROGERS. In that mat ter, if your Honor please, if your

8 Bonor desires it to be put in another way 1 will put it

9 in another way; it would save time.

10 T~E COURT. 1 don't think there is any difficulty to the

11 form of the ques tion. The question is whether the substance

12 I can be gone into at all and 1 am unable to agree with the

t at ion with ILr. Tvei tmoe and his couns el with ref er ence to

Tveitmoe and Mr. Sloss inger, his counsel from San Francisco,

other form you wish to amplify the record. Objection sus­

tained.

You can ask it in any

Q Mr. AP¢, did you have a consul-

MR. FREDERICKS. The same objection.

THE COURT. Objection sustained.

MR. ROGERS.E'""xception. Q Did you have a talk With Mr.

defendant's view in that regard.

MR. ROGERS. Except ion.

after he had been Withdrawn from the stand by the prosec ­

t ion, wi th reference to his taking the stand for the

putting him onthe Witness stand after the prosecution had

withdrawn him from the stand, as 1 have read from the

record here?

13

14 I
I

15 I
I

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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1 defendant?

2 MR. FREDERICKS. The same objection.

3 THE COURT. Objection sustained.

4 I MR. ROGRRS. Exception. Q State whether or not you soli-

5 cited Mr. Tvei tmoe to take the stand in behalf of defendant

6 and as a witness for rdefendant wi th reference to that

7 matter?

8 MR • FREDERICKS. The same objection.

9 THE COURT. Object ion sustained.

10 ltR. ROGERS. Exception. Q State whether or not Mr. Tveitmoe

11 and Mr. Slossinger told you that he was under indictment at

12 Indianapolis) under indictment in the United States Court

13 here. and possibly under indictment in the very indictment

14 '.'Vh ich has been introduced in evidence here, and that he

15 would not go upon the stand and be cross -examined ,-as to his

16 connection With the whole Mcnamara proposition for the

17 reason that it would be used against !lim in his own case?

18 MR. FREDERICKS. The same object ion.

19 THE COURT· Objection sustained.

20 MR. ROGERS. Except ion. Q. Stat? whether or not you--

21 THE COURT. Mr. Rogers, lir. Appel wants to confer with you

22 and you may do so.

23 MR. ROGERS. Q You may state what efforts, if any, were

made bj you in behalf of defendant to get Mr. Tvei tmoe to

attend this trial as a witness on behalf of the defendant.

24

MR. FREDERICKS. The same objection.
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THE COURT. Objection Bustained.

MR • ROGERS. Exception. 1 offer to prove by this witness in

accordnace with my previous B~atement to your Honor--
4' MR. FREDERICKS. The same matter previously stated?

5 MR. ROGERS. Yes.

6

7

8

9

10

11

. 12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26 !

I
i. I

I
I



cross-examined with reference to his case and his connec-

ness, didn't Mr Tveitmoe tell you that if he were not

him and his counsel \Yith respect to his appearing as a wit-

I shoul d have added

The same obj ec tion.

The obj ection sustained.

Exception.

Didn't yr Tveitmoe tell you at the time you consulted

th esame rUling.

THE COURT:

Q

1JfR FREDERI CKS :1

2

3

4' llR ROGERS:

5

6

7

8

I offer now, if your Honor please,

He will be glad to testifY to it, if it were

effecting his own cases in Indianapolis and here.

to call Mr Tvei tmoe as a witness an d plac e him at the dis­

posi tion 0 f the court with the understanding that he

~ot be crosB-er.amined comerning any matter effected

tion vii. th the McNamaras, a.nd his knowing Schmidtty, 0 r

M.A.Scimnidt, and Caplin and those others, he would testify

that he had in his possession at the time, that is, at

MR :BREDFRICKS: The fRIlle obj ec tion.

22 THE COURT: Objection sustained.
23 I

MR HOGERS : Exc ept i on.
24

25
I

2G I
I
I

not for the fact he would be croSS-ElY..amined in reference

19, to his whole connection with the matter, for the purpo se of

20

21

the time of his consultation wi th you, the largest part of

that money, of the $10,000, and that he gave a portion of,
the $10:,000 received by him for theca;,shing of that check

\

15 I on September 2nd, to Mr Darrow?
I

16 MR FREDERICKS: The same obj EC tion.

17 MR ROGERS:

18

91
10

11

12

13

14
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cases, or in any issue involved in, his own cases, either

here in the United States Court or at Indianapolis, if he

will testifY solely concerning the disposition of the

4 $10,000 received by him on the 2nd of September. Will

5 counsel stipulate to that?

6 MR :roBJ): Just a moment.

7 THE COURT:Q You can put Mr Tveitmoe on the stand if you

8 want to.

9 MR FREDERI CKS : Counsel asked us for a stipulation to

10

11

12

13

14

15

that effect, and we refuse to make such stipulation.

MR ROGERS: It That is all.

THE COURT: Now, l!r Ford, you may proceed vii th the argument

that was interrupted on th e question of the production of

certain documents and pap ers and telegrams and other

things, under section 1000.

16 MR:roW: I was just remarking, Y9ur Honor, when I was

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

interrupted that the law did not parmitad efencant, ru
any mERns, to drag and go through the prosecution's evi-

d enc e and find out what they had' to go on a fishing expe-.,
dition and find out what they had; ttat the law presumed

t rat the defendant v,as anti tIed to be informed of the na-

ture of th e charge against him; it was presumed that th e

defendant, if innocent, and even if gUilty, should be con­

victed -- cr' :te,').guilty, should be convicted by legal
I

evidence, and if innocent he 'would know the facts as to

his whereabouts and what he had done at the tim e in ques

tion, and t rat he could introduce truthfUl c.~kJal;~.f~sel.s.
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upon the stand, and it did; ':, not :' permit a guilty man

to put p erj ured testimony upon the stand and to guard

3 those perjured witnesses against cross-erJWnination by des-

4 I troying the protection which the District Attorney had

5 buill t up against such perjured t1es't"imony • This is

6 not the first time that people have tried or defendants

7 have tried, to find out what the testimony in the hands

8 of the pro s ecutwl1 was.

9 llR ROGERS: 'Wait a moment. I take an exception to tllelast

10 two sentences, and I characterize.them as misconduct.

11 lfR JroRD: Will you read the last two sentences?

12 MR ROGERS: Callil1.g witnesses purjured, and I dJIror that

13 absolutely that is our purpose and intention. They have

14

15

document s t bere vlhich they obtain ed without Mr Darrow's

consent, which they obtained by SUbterfuge and chicanery,

and which Mr Darrow has n ever seen, some of them, and

which they claim to have - - some of them -- and some of

them whic h we want to in troduce which vIe have no copies

,?f, and vlhich were taken' from his files, and we do not

deserve anything of that kind, and we take aneocception.

21 lJR FREDERICKS: We have nothing that was taken from the

22 fil ES 0 f Mr Darrovl.

23 MR APPIiL: No, he states this is not the fi rst time t mt

24

251
26 ,

I
I

I

the defendant has tried to destroy the guards which the Dis­

trict Attorney has put around his case to pr event

and subbornation. How? Perjury to be introduced
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That is in substanc e what the statement

2 is, and we say that is absoluteJy :talse; it is misconduct

3 on his part. and it should not be tolerated bY this court

4 for him to make aI\V such statement as tmt.

5 ]ER FORD: Read the last two sentences.

6 THE COURT: If the court understood the rew~rk correctly,

7 it V!taS a general remark applicable to any such case and

8 used to illustrate the conditions that might arise, and

9 if the court had interpreted the remark as counsel for the

10 defense have, it certainly would have reproved counsel at

11 I one e, bjlt lint erpreted it having no more application to
I

12 the defendant here in connection wi th the remark than when

13 counsel Vl.as talking about the murder case this morning by

14 yay of illustration. Perhaps I am v~ong.

15 MR ROGERS: ~ust a moment, air. nThia is not the first

16 time n • If that does not bring it dovm to the present

17 moment.

18 THE COURI': Did he say that?

19 ],fR ROGERS: yes sir, he did.

20 THE COURI': I would like to have the reporter read it.

21 (Last two sentences read.)

22 MR FRRDERICKS: Read the rest of it.

23 (The reporter reading as follows: UIt was presumed that

24 I

25 i
261

I
j

the defendant, if. innocent , and even if guilty, should be

convicted -- or if gUilty should be convicted by legal

evidence, andi if innocent he \\'Ould know the facts as to



5846

1 his whereabouts. and v,hat he had done at the time in ques­

2 tion and that he could int roduc e truthful witnesses upon

3 the stand and it did not permit a guilty man to __ tI}

There is a word trere tmtI cannot make4' THE 'REPORTER:

5 out --

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
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1 will repeat the remark 1 was about to make.

No, let the record be read. ~e

3 THE COURT· No, no, let us get what was said.

4 MR. FREDERICKS. It is rather strange if--well, we call for

5 the r ecord--that an at !'orney can be making an ar gument thct

6 William J. Burns being the greatest suborner of perjury

7 in the United States, am Mr. Ford cannot make a hypothetical

8 case referring to no witness in particular, and using the

9 word "per jury:!! without committ ing misconduct--

10 MR. APPEL. That is only a SUbterfuge; they have referred

11 to this case.

12 THE COURT. Let us get at this record now cmd see what it

13 is.

14 (Reporter attempts to read record.)

151 Mp. APPEL. We will supply by affidavits what we contend

16 was said by the witness and we cannot do it because the

17 record is not correct in our opinion, your Honor, and we

18 now claim the right to a correct record of everything that

19 is £iaid here.

20 THE COURT. You ha~.re that right.

21 MR • FORD. Rr iefly, then, the law does not permit'--

22 MR. APPEL. We take an except ion to the court t s statement

23 and what the statement was and the construction it bears.

24 MR • FORD. pave you finished"{

25 MR. ROGERS. Go ahead.

26' MR. FORD. The laYl does not permit a guilty n.ar~and his

I
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3

4

5

6

7

8

9
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accomplices to draw a drag net of inspection through the

papers and documents of the District Attorney for the purpose

of preparing a defense to his case upon perjured testimony

and preventing that per jury from being diacovered, if the

District Attorney desires to build up a series offacts and

get possession of evidence which will prevent that from

being done, he is entitled to do 80, and the law does not

permit a guilty man to guard against that protection which

the District Attorney has built up. And an innocent man

10 does not need to go through the archives of the District

11 Attorney and guard agai ret cross-examination; a man who is

12

13

14
I

15 I

16 1

telling the truth on the stand once will tell the same

truth at another time or another tribunal before which he

may hav"e appeared.

MR. ROGERS. 1 take an exception to the statements just made

if they are in the rea.> rd, upon the ground they are an un-

17 fair character iZ:ition of the :~" defendant and wereinean t and

18 intended as such and 1 state it is misconduct; I state that

19 the documents we are after were documents surreptitiously

20 and by chicancery secured from the files of the defenda"nt

21 and we wmt them ard ","e call for them--

22 MR. FREDERICKS. Then 1 will say, that we have absolutely no

23 such docunents and will swear to it and that will end the

24 necess ity· for th~ argument on the question of law. We have

not a single, solitary scratch of the pen that bears

description. Now, if that is what counsel wants--
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MR • ROGERS. 'f,Tery well, that settles a great deal of it.

MR. FORD. May 1 be permitted to finish the argunent7

THE COURT. Perhaps this matter is settled now. Let us see

MR. ROGER'S'. 1 understand, if your Honor please, that· oertai 1

telegranls of the defendant, original telegrams sent under

the defendant's name, many of them probably not signed by

If there are no papers there is nothing to pro-if it is

duoe.

him, as for instanc e 1 sent out many tel egrams over my name

or they are sent from my office, that 1 never do see, but

nffirertheless they have procured them from the telegraph

con,panies and we cannot get them, they were brought into th

box and we cannot find the tel egrarr.s and the telegraph

company says theyare in the possession of tbe District At­

torney and we want them; telegrams supposed to be delivered

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

117 .

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
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to us or to 1.1:. Darrow or to his office, we want to use them

for evidence and we cannot get them; letters that Ur.

Darrow is supposed to have sent, eon,e of which he may have

signed and some of which he pr obably never did sign, but

which bear his name, just as your Honor sends out many

telegrams, just 8.S Y01r clerk signs your Honor '8 na·ir.e to

sUbpoenaes,-but we want them, and they are not in our files

and in our possession; we have 9Xight to them. Now, your
these

Honor, if they h.ave not/telegrane which answer that des-

cr iption, of COUTS e, 1 take that in the sp ir it·

is said, but we Want these telegran.s which are our prope



1

2

3

and which we have a right to and which we could have got
not

if they were/in the possession of the Distfict Attorney,

by. sUbpoena to the telegraph conpany. Now, this question is

4' before the court.

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

THE COl~T. That clarifies the matter as to what iswanted.

MR • IiDRD. If the Court please, the denial of the District

Attorney was that we had any telegrari:'s that were pro-
from

cured/~/,\ .the defendant by chioanery and fraud, or from the

files of the defendant at all, and it is apparent that what

they want is not telegrams that were procured from their

ffi 1 es or doculllents that were procur ed by ohioancery or frauc~

but they are referring now to doouments which were obtained

by process of law in a legal rranner from the telegraph

company, which is an entirely different thing.

15 THE COu~T. Counsel for defense should not have used the

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26 I

I

word "chioanery'" and "fraud" at all.

MR • FORD. It' any suoh dOCulf;ents were obtained, let it be

shown.
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Mr Ford,

2

3

you do not pretend you have· any right to go down here to

the telegraph office and get our telegrams, the originals,

4' for instance, and get than into yourposaession, and then

deprive us of the right to get them in some way or other,

or use them as evidence, if we can use them as evidence?

5

6

7

8

You do not pretend that would be right, do you?

right to get th an fran you.

We have a

9

1

MR FORD: I am going to argue the question that is now be­

10 fore the court, assuming, for the sake of argument, we had

regardless of how they got into the possession of the pro­

secution, and our claim is that the law does not permit a

some telegrams signed by the defendant, would we, if we

had such telegrams, be required to produce them to the de-

11

12

13

14

15

fendant? That is the point that is before this court,

possession of the District Attorney; that it does not J:lllI'-

16 I defendant to get his documents, even if they are in the
17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26 ,

I

mit him to find out what was in the possession of the Dis­

trict Attorney. I have stated all the grounds upon which

the lavl rests. Now, in th e case of People versus Alviso

in the 55th Cal., at page 232 of that case, the defendant

was indicted for murder, the most serious crime known to

our law; that is, one visited with the most serious penal­

tics. At least, ·there are other crimes which might be re­

garded as more serious, but this is the one to vhich is

attached the most serious penalty. Before the
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1 of the trial, the defendant moved the court that the pro-

2 secution be ordered to furnish to the defense a bill of par­

3 ticulars of the evidenc e relied on to support the indic t-

4 I ment, on the ground tlat they were informed tlat the indict-

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

mont vas found on the testimony of one ~ula:r-iG.mrtinez,

who se name vIas endorsed on the indictment, who testified to

the killing on a certain cay and at a certain. place, and

"'as informed t lat the prasecutio11li might a bandon the tes-
/

timony of Martinez and prove it by one J"uan Valdez

that the defendant was killed at another time at a differ-

ent place and under different circumstances, and that by

reason 0 f such conflicting information and of th e general­
indictment,

i ty of the (:.;,. ,.. ) the defendant did not know what case

14 they were to meet. In t J::a t case they did not ask for
I

15 I the ~idence itself, they merely asked for a bill of par-
I
I

16 ! ticulars; they asked for much 1 ass than what this defend-

17 ant is asking for, and the denial of the motion by the

18 court is assign eel as error. UOurattention has not been

19 directed to any section of the Penal Code directing a bill

20 of ptrticulars to be furnished to a defendant on t rial upon

21 a criminal charge, and we do not call to mind any rul e of

22 law requiring the same to' be done. We see no error in the

23 ruling. U Much 1 ElSS than What they are asking for in

24 this particular ~ase.

MR 'ROGERS: Let us see t lat.

UR FORD: That is all it holds, Which is

ticulars, which is muc h 1 ass than is asked ,,,,.,,,,.,:,:, ..'",,".-
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1 the case of State versus Terry, reported in the ,55th

2 So. Heps. page 15, a Louisiana case, also fbund in 128

3 La. at peg e 680, the defen cant in that case was indicted

4 ' for:t. selling liquor and aiding in th e violationl of the li­

5 quor laws, mther, by giving a prescription to one who

6 had taken it to the drug store, and had it filled, doing

7 so in violation 0 f the laws of Louisiana, which prohibi t-

8 ed a physician from giving a prescription, except in a case

9 vIDere it was absolutely ne:essary and legitimat4J. In that

10 case t~ prescription upon which the liquor had been sold

11 was in the hands of the prosecution, the very prescrip-

12 tion upon which th e prosecution was based. The physician,

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26 !

I

the defendant Terry, demanded that he be allowed to in­

spect that prescription, that document vmich had been

signed by himself, in order that he might prepare his de­

fense' and moot the accusation broutht by the authorities,

and the courts held in that case that the defendant was not

entitled to an incriminating document signed by himself.

That is not the law of Louisiana alone, but is the law of

all states. the general rule about production of docu­

ments is laid do\v.nin Wharton's Criminal ~idence, the

latest edition, the loth Edition, Volume 2, pege 1156,

page 564 -- in discussingt the production of documents and

cases where it might properly be produced, the author says:

"The first essential to such production is to

court that the document sought is relevant to the issue.
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1 When this essential requi rement is complied with the court,

2 according to the circumstances of the case vvill order the

3 production 0 f the document", and if your Honor will bear

4 I in mind at the beginning we made two obj ECtions, one was

5 that there was no shovnng as to the materiality and rel-

6 evancy of the documents asked for, there ,vas no showing

7 that they desired to introduce them in evidence, the

8 notice was insufficient in that particular. Assuming, for

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

the sake of argument, that they can compel the production

of any of the documents, th3.t is one point supported by
;

WbiJrton here, and we go further than that, we not only

claim that the notice is insufficient, assuming th3.t the

documents "vere of a nature to sustain the production of

them upon the demand of the defense ,

16 I
17 I

I
18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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and we go further than that, we clainl that they cannot,

even if they had prepared a sufficient notice, that they

could not compel us to produce an incriminating doculY.ent

in a criminal case, tbat the section has no application to

the proposition now before your Honor. As Wharton says

in the same paragraph, "However, in cr iminal cases it is

particu.larly evident that the accused cannot compel the

prosecu tion to produce documents which heb imself has made.

He is supposed to be familiar With what he himself has

made," he is not entitled to have incrim~nating letters

written by him produced for his inspection," and citing the

cast of Morr lso n versus the State in 'Ehe 40th Texas Cr imina

which 1 have here, "Nor to haye produced a statement made
the accused

·and signed bYt-1)rliself, even on the ground that such state-

ment is material to his defense," citing the case of

Peopl e versus Fit zgerald, 130 11 iSBour i, "Norto have produce'

a statement made and signed by the accused hiroself, even

on the ground that such statement is material to his

defense."

Now, in the case of Morrison versus the state,

that case was a case in which a man who had been formerly

a minister, while his wife was living, he traveled about

buying or pretending that he was bl;ying cattle, and he met

a former sweetheart of hie, he told her that the wife whom

he had m~'ried in his younger days was dead, that the

n.inister of whom she had been hearing was not hirr.self



5856

1 was someone else, that he was engaged in the business of

2 buying cattle, and under those circumstances he wrote many

3 love letters to her. mhe motive sought to be established

4 I by the prosecution was that the defendant had killed his

5 wife in order that he might marry the sweetheart of his

6 early days and the prosecution had in its possession many

7 incriminating letters written by the defBndant to this forme

8 sweetheart. The defendant made an attempt to get· those

9 incriminating letters--

10 MR. ROGERS. We do not want any incriminating letters, we

11

12 I

13 I
141

I

1- IDI

16 II
17

say that right now, we want letters we want to use our-

selves.

MR. FORD· They must be either incrimimting or self-serving

one or the abother, or else absolutely not mater ial at all.

There are only three classes of telegrams which cane possibl'

exist, as far as this defendant is concerned; one would be

telegrams containing self-serving declarations Which under

18 no circumstances are admissible; the other would be in-

19

20

21

22

23

24

criminating letters, and the third class, which would in­

clude all those not in&luded in the first two classes, would

be telegrams which have no relevancy or materiality to the

case at all, so that under all the circumstances, unless

they are incriminating telegrams, it is not necessary to

discuss the other two, and VI e want to. show tna~, even in the

case of incriminating telegrane, even in the case of evi-

dence that is likely to be produced against tre
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As the court says, in Morrison against th
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ti tIed to that.

or that could poss ibly under some contingency be. produced

against the defendant, things which under all principles,

above all others, if he is entitled to at all he ougtt to

be entitled to those, but even as to those, heie not en-

behalf, they do not seem to have in mind this any l:::articular

letter or telegram, they do not identify any particular doc ­

ment that they desire the prosecution to produce, they do

not state the materiality of it, they do not etatethe pur­

pose of it at all, and under those circumstances the only

possible purpose can be, so that they might prepare and take

can te no intention to offer them in evidence in the ir own

produced upon the trial of the case;

I

proper steps, take the proper steps to prepare their defense:.

I
I

nIt appears that these letters, however, were

the witness Steel and I
Miss Anna Whittlesey appearing there in areple tirre to tes- 1

tify upon the trial. We know of no law compelling the prose~

State, nAppellant's second assignment -of errQr is that the

court erred in refusing to grant an order compelling the

prosecution to produce the letters requested under

defendant!s motion to that effect, because he had a right

to inspect the same before going into the trial so that he

might take the proper steps to prepare his defense. n That

is exactly the situation here, in order that they may take

the proper steps to prepare their defense. Certainly there

(Readihg)

cution to disclose the character and kind of evidence tha

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21
B

22

23

24

25 I

26
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Furthermore , it is not made

2 to appear in the record before us in what way appellantts

3 rights were injured, or that he was deprived of any sub-

4' stantial privilege. The evidence showed that all the letters

5 wer e wr i tten by him. This be ing true, am uncontrover ted,

6 certainly he knew the contents of the letters, and could

8 in this case the defendant could not be deprived of any

documents called for were written by him, certainly he must

he did claim any such surprise. We do not think the court

erred in refusing to grant "the motion, because, at the time

Paraphrase

The evidence will show that aJl th

not claim any character or kind of surprise."

substantial privilege.

know the contents of the docurrents that he is asking for,

and this bHng true he could not claim any character or kind

of surprise concerning documents that were written by him-
does not

self. (Reading.) "If he id1ould, the record(\disclose that
\

7

I,

15 I
I

16

9

10

11

12 I

13

14

17 the same was made, it could not becornplied With; and,

18 besides, appellant had the fuJI rtht of croes-examination

19 as to these letters dur ing the tr ial."

20

21

22

23

24

25

261

I
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1 Now ~ the sweetheart in tm t crase is exactly in ah e po-

2 sition of the telegraph company in this case. The defend­

3 ant in that case is in exactly the saine position that the

4 defendant is in this case. The telagrams in that case or

now from the telegraph companies original telegrams sent

then counsel can put another question to us. Now, in the

case of State versus Fit2gerald :.another murder case, your
a

Honor, "The first point relied upon by defendant for Are-

versal of the jUdgment is the action of the court in re­

fusing to sustain his motion praying the production in

court 0 f th e wri t tBn stat ement made and sign ed by him to

MR FORD: When \\'8 are compell ad to answer that question

send someone out here?

the letters iB that case are exactly in the position of

the telegrams in this case, and if all he is asking for

are documents written by himself -- if the documents were

written by him, certainly he knows the contents of them,

and the prosecution cannot be compelled to furnish him

the evidence that it has, if it has any, that it has

against him, and enable him to prepare his defense, and

we are holding it, if we have any such matters, we would

have a right to hold them until such time as we degm \use

or prop er to produc e thgm.

MR ROGERS: 'r just ask counsel if he hasn't got right

by Mr Iarrow to Samuel Gompers on either the 22nd or

23rd, the date when Mr Gompers \YaS informed and asked to

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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the Chief Detective Officer. William Desmond. after the

inquest ~s over." The coron erts inquest. (Continuing

reading:) "And he was beimg held for the homicide, and

\Vhich ,vas at the time of the trial in the possession of

the prosecution. The motion was filed before the taking

of testimony was begun. No reason has been assigned where-

He ~s

being held for homicide, and which was at the time of the

trial. in the possession of the prosecution, a document

going to the very merits of the controverff,1 what ~s be­

fore the court. a statement .made and signed by the d ef end­

ant himself with regard to that very matter, a docunmnt.

the possession of which, or the knovdedge of which, was

of the hig best importanc e to defendant and his counsel,

and they made a demand for it. and certainly, if the law

ever permitted the defendant to get possession of a docu­

ment that was in th e hands of the prosecution, that would

be the case, and yet the law does not permit it. (Con­

tinuing reading:) "It is true that it is said the state­

mentwas necessary and material to the defendant in the

preparation and proper presentation of his defense, but

as to "merein or how material, we are left to conj ecture. It

In this case wherein is it necessa~- or material to the de­

fendant. is left -entirely to conjecture. He doesn't even

spe~ifY the documents that he asks for. (Continuing

ing:) "Nor has it been made apparent to us why it was n

in there v~s error in overrulin g this motion."

25
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essary for the purpose claimed by defendant. Moreover, it

~s the evidence of the state, and if defendant's conten­

tion be correct. he COUld, for a like reason, and upon the
-

same principle, have asked the court to require the state

to produce its witnesses before his counsel for their ex-

amina tioll'. in regard to thEir knowl edge of the case, but

he II1ight thereby be better prepared to make hisdefense;

something for which no lawyer would contend. At most, it

was a matter resting in the discretion of the court, and

it did not act unwisely in overruling the motion."

In State versus Leard, the lOth Pacific, page 637, I

think that is the case which I read to your Honor.

THE COURT: Pardon me, Mr Ford, I think you read most of

these cases on a former argument.

MR FORD: I think I did, your Honor, and I think at that

time I called your Honor's attention to the case of Ex­

parte Clark in the l26th Cal •• read from the syllabus

second syllabus, your Honor, (reading:) liThe court is

bonnd to prot eo t a party to an ac tion from undue inquisi tim

into his private affairs, and cannot allow a dragnet of, in~

spe~tion to be drawn through all of his books and papers,

to discover whether they do or do not contain legalwidence

infavor of the opposite party." They are not, in this

case, entitled to' draw their drag-net through all of our

books and papers for the purpose of a fishing excursion

to find out, if, perchance, it contains some legal evid­
ence which might be legal widence infavor o~ca~t;(?bvdL~t~nl~Y
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in this case,'nor will a mere suspicion that thev contain

material evidence warrant an order for their production.

The court has no power to order the production of books or

papers by one party to be used as evidence for the other

party vrlthout an affirmative and sUbstantial showing by

affidavit or ot~rwise,

,

25

26
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116 1 that tley contain ev idence mater ial to the cause of action

order had been made by the court and t'be defend. ant. was pun­

ished for contempt in refusing to produce the books and

no averrment of the materiality of the evidence requested

by the opposite party ani that, therefore, the court had

exceeded its jurisdiction in trying to compel Clark to pro­

duce the docUD!ents, consequently the order punishing him for

The defense raised that there was no rraterial--

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

or defense of the party.requir ing them."

papers.

In that case an

10 contempt was void. The matter came up on habeas corp~s

11 to the Supreme Court and the petitioner was released. The

12 decision covered sorr.e 7 or 8 pages, I believe your Honor is

13 fa mi.l iar wi th it. 1 think we read it to yeu before, in

14 which it settled the question of notice. The Clark case

151 holds, your Honor, that 'they must specify in detail that

16 I which they want and make some showing of its mater ial i ty.

171 That has not been done until a moment ago Mr. Rogers asked

18 for the Gompers telegram. Is that the telegram -you desire?

19 MR. ROGERS. 1 desire that among others and 1 purpose to

20 inquir e for all of it. My question was simply, have you

21 produced the documents named in the sUbpoena. I have not

22 been permitted to shem the materiality or desoription of any

23 of them.

24 MR FO'RD. I dont~ haye to comply with any request or any

25 ord e1' until the documents are shown to be in my possessio
I

26 I and a1' e shown th at they haye s orne mater ial i ty, and th at th

I
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must be specifie4 in some way in order 1 may pick out such

r
2 documents, if 1 have them.

3 MR. ROGERS. Bring them all bere and we will pick them out.

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

fic$ion on the part of the defendant just which documents
ir

they wish and the/materiality, and then we will know what

to ar gue fro m•

MR. FORD. 1 will only content myself onthe question of unde

ex parte Clark page l 240, (Reading) "In the case at bar, we

are satisfied that the order in question was unauthorized.

There was not showing by affidavit or otherwise that the

books in question contained any evidence material to plain­

tiffts cause; the only evidence onthe point was the testi-

Moreover, it was

Just as couns el 12 as now advised me to br ing

must be shown to support such belief.

in effect a general omnibus order for the production of all

defendantts books, which has always been held to be un-

authorized."

own witness, and that showed that they did not contain such

evidence. In Morrison vs Sturges, '26 How, Pro 179, the

court says: It is no t enough that the par ty bel ieves or

is advised that the paper contains material evidence. Facts

in everything 1 have in my possession, a general omnibus

order.~hat might answer a very general description given

ib the SUbpoena, and as the court says here: "(Reading)

15 II mony of petitioner when on the witness stand as plaintiffts
16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25 I
261

I
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1 "It has always b~en held to bemauthorizedj for, while it

2 named certain books, yet those constituted all of defendant'

3 bo~, as appeared from plaintiff's examination of the peti-.--

4 tioner as to what books the defendant had. Again, the

5 order was in the nature of what Lord Chancellor P'ardwicke,

6 over a century ago, called 'a mere fishing biJl' and such

7 bills have.been universally conderrmedo It is further

8

9

10

11/
12 I

13

ev iden ce that these books wer e not r equir ed to be produced

for the direct purpose of introducing them in evidence."

The court says right here, and there must be some showing

here that these documents which they want to have produced

must be documents which they intend to put in evidence.

They must show there is some materiality, and avow their

14 intention of putting them in evidence. (Reading) "Plain-

15 tiff would not have offered them or any part of them in

16 e vidence unless he found something in the part offered

17 that was relevant and material in support of his side of

18 the case; he merely intended todraw his drag net of

19 inspection through all of these books under the ostensible

20 motive of trying to get something which his witness had.

21 testified was not there. In the mean time, all the pr ivate

22 business of the defendant--all its dealings with persona

23 other than plaintiff, its methods of conducting its af-

24 fairs, perhaps its finar.cial condition and other matters

251 vitally important to its welfare--would have been exposed.

26' There is no warrant in the law for such

I
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violation of a persons privacy upon such a showing as was

rrade in this case. A man does not lose all his civil

rights because he is brought into court as a party to a

suit. As was said by Lord Hatherley: 'A court is bound to

protect a defendant against undudnq~i!sition into its
I

affairs'; and it would be difficult to imagine a more

striking instance of such 1undaeiriqu:b~ition' than an order,
comp~~ling the defendant to produce for inspection all of

his booka upon the mere suspicion--against positive

evidence to the contrary--that they might possibly contain

some evidence favorable to the plaintiff, and without

pointing to any particular part of all of these books over

which this suspicion was supposed to hover.
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1 The authorities on the subject are innumerable. Many

2 of them arose out of the discussions of the old 'Bill of

3 discovery' and many out of later statutory provisions;

4 but the principl es which they declare are cl early to the

5 point that such an order as is here under review is un-

6 authorized; Ormginally, an order for the production of

7 a paper, document or book was made only when the document

8 was once declared on in the bill or set up as a defense;

9 or where the party asking for it had an interest in the

10 document itself -- as where it was a cont ract between the

11 parties, and t rere vtaS only one copy of it which vas in

12 the hands of the opposite party, or where the instrument

13 was in the very nature 0 f things, material evidence as where

14 it was alleged to have been forged or altered, and tffit

15 it would, on its face, show the fact alleged; or where

16 books belonged to both parties and would necessarily con­

,17' tain 9lidence of the issues pending ...;.- as in the case of

18 a suit between partners, or generally between principal

19 and agent or trustee and beneficiary. Afterwards, such

-

case warranting such an order as the one now under re-

forced production of papers, are declared in the authori­

ties as above stated, and we have been referred to no

orders were undoubtedly eoctended so as to include other

grounds for production of papers, and were in many stat es,

as hereinbefore noticed, ,regulated by statute and rules of

court; but the principles applicable generally to the

26
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1

2

3

4

5

6

view. It

The counsel have not, either at this time or when the
i

"subj ect was up the previous times, have not onc e call ad yomrri'

Honor's attention to a case \mich woul d warrant an in-

spection of the document in the possession of the Dis­

trict Attorney, not one authority have they sho'vm where it

7 said a thing of that kind has wer been don e. (Reading: )

8 "llany cases are there cited to the point that there must

9 be a substantial showing that the document or book soUght

10 for contains material evidence in support of the cause

11 of action ordefense, of the party asking for it; and that

12 such a mere suspicion as appears in th e case at bar will

13 not~arrant an order for the production. But the princi­

14 pIe which is determinative of the invalidity of the order

15 involved in the case at bar is stated on page 533, where

16 the author says, 'The right given by statute to discover

17 books, papers and documents relating to the merits of a

18 pending action does not entitle a party to enter into a

19 mere fishing examination of all the books, papers, and

20 documents of his adversary. An inquisitorial ~ination

was not contemplated by the framers of the statute. '1t
So much for the materiality required under our law.

In case of Peopl e vs. Glaze, in the 139th California,-­

THE COURT: It seems to me, Mr Ford, we are wandering into

the realms of elemetary propositions, whether there is
as

necessity of it --f< the prewiding ju~e of this court, P

21

22

23

24

25

26
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1 suant 'to section 2020, 21, 22 and 23, I bad occasion to

2 pass on the merits of this precise question several tim~

3 day for the last year, in the rnatter of taking deposition s.

4 MR FORD: If your Honor is satisfied on the point

5 MR FREDEHICKS: There is one mat ter --

6 THE COURT: I am satisfied I have read pretty near all the

7 law there is in California on tba t point.

8 MR FREDERICKS: There is one matter I think will sho nen

9 the matter, I am never very long in my remarks -- .

10 cOtmsel has not stated what they vant. No"lv, if there is

11 anything in our posseession, any document, or if we can

12 get a hold of any document that this defendant wants to

13 introduce inwidence he shall have that document.

14 MR ROGERS: Very good; why didn' t we save all this

15 MR J!1ffiIDERICIffi: But that is not the point. We declined to

16 turn over to them all of the material that we may have

17 gathered in order that they may fish and finger through

18 it.

19 THE COURT: All right, now. Let's stop with that. We

20 are altogether on that point.

21 MR FREDERICIffi: No, we are not. Let them specify ,mat

22 they want, and tlRt they will introduce tlat in evidence

23 'when they get it.

24 MR APPEL: Now, -your Honor, just on e moment -­

°5t;. THE COURT: Now, 1 et me see if I get Mr Rogers' statame

26 I understood Mr Rogers to acquiesce in that statement.
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1 MR ROGERS: No, I did not say I would introduce it in evi-

2 dence. I am not goir\g to introduce in evidence anything

3 I don't see fit to, but I have a right to refresh the wit­

4 ness' recollection -- I have the right to telegrams he

5 sent.' The telegrams I do want to introduce in evidence

6 which they have gotten ffom the telegraph companies and

7 which they have gotten, as I understand it, from our files,

8 which I have a right to have, for the purposes of this

9 case. I am on no fishing expedition; I don't 'I:~nt to

10 v..ander through all their documents and books. All I want

11 is that which relates to 1fr Darrow. V'hen, On Saturday, I

12 began largely indetail for examination, of Mr Darrow, I

13 found the absence of documents where they ought to be,

14 from the telegraph companies, and from the fil es, and I

15 found them in the possession of the District Attorney.

16 What am I going to do but ask for them just as I have asked

17 the telegraph companies?

18 MR FREDERICKS: Just let.counsel spa:ify just what he

19 want s, then it may be, -- I am not saying we will

20 if he will specify just exactly \mat he wants

21 },fR ROGERS: Just exactly -- I cannot always do.

22 MR FREDERICKS: And show its materiality

23 THE COURT: Let me make a statement here that may shorten

24 the argument a Ii ttle. I have had this quest ion so many

25 times, as I have said, under section 2021, which

26 for the taking of depositions, and h~e constantly refu
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1 to issue any order for the issuance of a SUbpoena except

2 when the affidavit discloses, at least, upon information

3 and belie." that the wi tnesswho se deposi tiOlli. the affiant

4 sought to take, or the party sought to take,·testified to

5 some material fact. Now, that is practically this point-­

6 if it, is different from this point, let's have the dif-

7 f erenc e.

8 MR APPEL: Now, your Honor,VJe contend that sections 2019

9 and2020, and 2021 have absolutely no application to this

10 question. Our cont'ention is this, your Honor; ·that if

11 the telegraph company had telegrams there that lfr Darrow

12 had sent on a certain occasion on a certain date, that we

13 would have a right to call the tel ~raph company to pro-.

14 duce that telegr-dl11 here, either to show someverbal act of

15 the defendant, some substantative fact or by the tel egram

16 made by him to refresh his memory therefrom, .just exactly,

17 your Honor, as document·-- several documents were used in

18 evidenc e here by the i'eople, gotten from different insti­

19 tutions, which refreshed the memory of witnesses upon th e

20 stand. Your Honor will remember you EVen admittea. tho·se

21 documents, although the statute says that the memorandum

22 itself is not widence of the facts contained in it, and

23 as has also been said in the case 0 f peopl e against Lanter­

24 man, but they went in evidence. Now, that is on the part

2;';:
u of the prosecution, they were used for that purpose.

26 contention is that if the tel €graph company had a tele-
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1 gram sent by Mr Darrow on a certain day to any individual,

2 which that telegram and the :fact of sending it \"as so

3 connected with an:!-so related to some fact that he would

4 testify upon the stand, we would have a right to say to the

5 telegraph office, tlCome into court with that telegram",

6 and Vilhen Mr Darrow was on th estand, we certainly v.ould have

7 a right to show him the telegram to either refresh his

8 memory, or to corroborate any :fact that he was going to

9 testify to by the fact that he had sent the telegram in

10 reference to any matter that he may disclose upon his tes­

11 timony. I didn't SUP1)OSe anyone would contend that could

12 not be don e. Now, we issued a subpoena here and we go

13 to the telegraph cfffice and we ask for the production of

14 such a telEgram of such a date. They answer they haven't

15 got it. Well, Who has got it? The District Attorney.

16 who is the District Attorney? The District Attorney is a

17 person t:tat has come down there and taken that telegram.·

18 Can't we do the same thing with the District Attorney?

19 Can't we come to him and say, _Itproduce that telegram?" The

"'e, in good faith, say we can use on the examina tion of

our witnesses here, perchance, because the District Att

is whether we are going to be deprived of evidence which
•

question as to vb et her we can us e that telegram 0 l' not,

your Honor, may not -- is not the matter under inquiry.

The question whether we can introduce tlat telEgram in evi­

dence is not at all involved in this issue. The question

25
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1 has gotten ahead of us and taken it from the plac e they \'\'ere

2 or by 'Nhatever means they got itt t.hat is the sole ques-

3 tion here. Now, counsel says, "Let us have the law;

4 let 11S have the law; 1 at's have the law." Section- 1000

5 says what? "Any.court in which an action is pending--"

6 this is an action pending -- "or a jUdge thereof may, upon

7 notic e, 0 reler 8ither p::t rty to give to the other t wi thin

8 a specified time, a.n inspection and copY, or permission to

9 take a copy of entries ofc.ccounts in any bcrok, 0 l' of any

10 docmment or paper in his possession, or under his control,

11 containing EVidence relating to the merits of the action,

12 or the defense t l:erein." I don't care for the l!issouri law,,
13 California is good enough in this section. I don't care

14 for th e love I etters of the ex-preacher to his sweetheart.

ID'" They may have been prop or under circumstances that the

16 love affairs of a minister to one of the congregation

17 should not be disclosed in evidence. It might be possible

18 that it vias right to presume. I don't care for that; I

don't care for that murder case in which a defendant said

before trial, "Give me particularly all the evidence tlRt

I don't my he wasa bill 0 f particulars."
entitled to it; nobody would contend tlRt it was foolish for

any man to ask for any such thing as that, but here we are

int roducing evidenc e on the part of the defense, and we my

certa in document s .which we need, ei th ElI' to refresh· the

memo~ of the witness or which contain inherent sUbstan

you have
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1

2

3

4

5

evidence is necessary to our case, and \w find these docu-
a .

ments gone. Now, we cont end that we can call"wi tness .,,1

on th e stand and ask him, "P.ave you go t th at document",
,

and he says, "Yes". When the court orders its production

in court, and then the District Attorney says vre must intro

6 duce it in evidence. I sa:l that alVone who has ever read

7 this code, your Honor, the merest tyro in the profession

8 'I!'~ 15 year old boy knows better than t lRt. Section 1939

9 says explicitely that we don't have to introduce it in

10 evidence. section 1939: ttThough a wri ting call ed. for by

THE COURT: It segms to me,gentlemen, that ~e can dispos

THE COURI.': .rust a moment, 1fr Appel. I will have to inter-

rupt you for a brief rec eSSe

(.Turyadmonished. Recess for 10 minutes.)

And all the 0. ecisions

(After recess.)

one party is produced by the other t and is thereupon in­

spected by the party ca.lling for it, he is not oblig eO. to

produce it as evidence in the case."

are to tffit effect, so by vJhat right or by what law do

counsel on the other side undertake to get from us, and by

\\'hat right has this court a right to my to us if these

documents are produced you ~st introduce them in evidence?

A cl ERr violation of the plain, simple provisions of the

statute. \"\hat v,ras this section passed for? Why, section

1000 and section 2021 and so on, has received the most

liberal construction in our state ---
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one branch of this work right now. I haven't ap.y doUbt

but what the defense here Vlould have a right to call the

custodian of these documents from the Western Union or

Postal. as it might be. put him on the witness stand. and

call for the document and eocamin e him and introduc e such

of then as hesaw fit. if the fact appears. temporarily.

some other person has them. whether that person happens

to be Mr Ford 0 I' som eone el se. the same rul e should apply.

They are records and fil es of the Western Union ih1'fice.

They are notrecords and files of the District Attonlev's

office. They don't belong to the District Attorney's of­

fice. They are temporarily there. and the Western Union

are entitled to have them returned at any time on a proper

showing. They belong to the Western Union.

MR FREDERICKS: We haven't any such telegrams. your Honor.

I don't think we have got any.

THE COURT: Haven't we been wasting a good deal of time dis­

oussing the matter.

MR FREDERICRB : I think that we oan know 'I'm. ere to go and

get them. if they "rant them. and it is quite possible ...../e

have oopies of them. and I am not going to my this un­

qualifiedly. because ,~have so much truok in this thing.

but I don,t think that V~ have any of tho se telegrams. but

if oounsel will.speo:i:fy just what telegrams he 'VBl1ts, we

.....rlll endeavor to g et him oopies of them anyhow.

THE COURT: Well, he has speoified one partioular
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.' '...;' I

it.

THE COURT: You will produce tlRt copy?

gram.

sent some telegrams of such a nature, a.nd a man who \'B.S

engaged as he vas cannot give exact cates and days.

I don't know that I could get it right

now.

MR JiREDE1:UCKS: That is all right. I think t her e is such

a telegram, although I have never seen it. I think I have

seen a copy of it, and I V'Jill be glad to help him to get

MR FRE.DERICKS:

11.R BOGERS: I can't spECify. They fAY if we vlill specify.

We were talking in ther e and trying to reach somet bing. I

can't specify date and day. .All Mr Darrow can remember,

not having his files with him, is tlRt he remembers to have

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9
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14

15 . THE COURT: As I understand your position, you \~t to look

1fr Ford, take the stand.

MR FREDERICKS: All the tel fgrams that are received in

got them, he has seen them. Fe knows who has got it. We

want the information so we can get it.

MR FREDERICKS: All what?

Put the witness on the stand, and if he hasn't

at those telegrams c~d refresh his memory.

THE COURI': I gue ss t lR t will make a better record.

THE· COURT: I agree with you.

IfR DARROW: We 'V'v'ant all 0 f them.

UR APPEL:

1fR ROGERS: Yes sir.
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1 this office are skeleton copies. You can get --

2 THE COURI.': All right, proc eed with the eoapnination.

3 MR ROGERS: I take it, Mr Ford, in answer to the last

4 question, if you have produced any documents, what would

5 your answer be? A" Has the court overrul ed the objection

6 . to that question?

7 THE COUffi': Vie11 , now, \'hat is that question?

8 MR roGERS: That is preliminary; it is asking him if he has

9 prodl!l.ced the documents referred to in the SUbpoena. Now

10 then, he has a right to --

11 THE COURT: yes, as to t bat quest ion. The question now is

12 Have you produced the documents called for in the subpoena?

13 A The SUbpoena not having specified any particular docu-

14 ments, from believing the law requires a SUbpoena to spe­

15 cify such documents, I have not attempted to gain access to

16 any documents and have not produced any documents.

17 MR ROGERS: Have you any documents such as telegrams purpo:t

18 ing to be sent by th e defendant, Ia.rrow, while he was

19 here in Los Angeles during the 1!cNamara case or immf,ediat~

20 ly before, betvreen July and the 2nd day of December, 19l1?

21 A Read that question. (Last question read by the re-

22 porter.) Well, now, I don't want to qui1l11l11e. I haven't

23 possession of any document. I have had access to some

24 documents. I have seen some documents purporting to be

25 signed by the defendant, and I have made notes of numer-

26 ous documents purporting to be signed by the defendant.
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1 Q Vi}here did you see those documents? A Well, in the

2 District Attorney'S office, I have seen them.

3 Q IIl: the District Attornn's office? A Yes.

4 Q Well, you have had charg e 0 f the preparation 0 f this

5 case, haven't you? A Assisting Captain Fred ericks in

6 preparing the case.

7 Q Well, who has those documents now vvhich you have seen?

8 1m FREDERICKS: If you :know?

9 :MR ROGERS: If you :know?

10 A I don't know.

11 Q When did you last see them? A From time to time I

12 have seen different documents that I was interested in.

13 I have made copies of such documents as.I am interested

14 in, and I usually worked from the copi ES, and didn't care

15 anything about the originals.

16 Q When was the last time you mw th ase documents?

17 MRFREDERICKS: By these documents, your Honor, is too

·18 general.

19 ]lR ROGERS: The documents he is talking about.

20 MR FREDERICKS: Even so, t hat is pretty general. '

21 A I have at various times. since the tennination

22 of the UcNamara case t seen document s purpo rting to be sign­

23 ed by C. S. Darrow or Claren~e Darrow.

24 ]lR ROGERS: And. in vmos e possession were they vmen you saw

25 them? A When I saw them they v.ere in my possession.

26 Q To whom did you deliver them after seeing them?



-

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

5879

A To the person from whom I got them.

Q From whom did you get them? A Whenever I wanted to

see them, I sent some attache of my office to get them

wherever they were, and at ,the time they were gotten.

Q Where did you send this at-tache to get them? A I told

him to fini out.

Q You d>old him to find out? A Find out vihere they were.

Q What attache did you sent to find out and get them.

for you? What is his name, aside from being an attache?

:MR FREDERICKS: Oh, I suppose, your Honor , there is no

use fussing about it. These telegrams were, I think, got­

ten by the United States grand jury. When we vanted them

we sent dovm there and got copies of them; sometimes got

the originals.

l{R APPIiL: Down 'where? That is the point.

IfR FBEDERICKS: The United States District Attorney, I

think. I told counsel if he would specifY what he wanted ­

they all have to be gotten by SUbpoena from the telegraph

office. The telegraph office will not give up telegrams

wi thout a d:re"e's ' tecum SUbpoena for them as I understand

it.

MR ROGERS: Of course, I would like Captain Fredericks to

take the stand if he is going to testify. He is doing bet­

ter, a whole lot better than Mr Ford.

THE COURT: He is conceding these matters; tlBt is

you are after, is information.
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THE COURT: Let the wi tness finish his ansWE'er.

:MR APPEL: Your Honor can see --

torney's office. If we wanted them we have got them. t ~re.

In my physical po ssession, you

VJha t is the use 0 f taking up time. I

Isn't it a fact you have in your possession

W e want you to direct him to answer, if your

they were under 'my control. Ivas endeavoring to give you

the :fRct. To a limited certain €OCtent, I supfOse

under my control. I never had any difficulty in

What is the us e 0 f taking up time. -

THE WIT}TESS: You have asked for my conclusion whether

think these things are in the United States District At-

THE COURr: If he had answered the question), I will hear

your obj rotion. He has not finished his answer.

Under your control, :M:r Ford? A Well, I have alViays

To that extent, thE¥ are under my control.

this case? A I don't think there are any in that box,

there migh t have been one or t·wo, I am not sure.

right noVl, telegrams, original telegrams purporting to be

signed by Mr Darrow, written or <:.ated between July and

No, I mean under your c entrol as on e of the counsel in

MR APPl1L:

\

MR FREDERICKS:

Honor please.

December 2nd, 19l1? A

mean?

MR ROGERS:

been able to get them whenever I wanted them.

MR APPEL: Now, your Honor, that don't answer the question.
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1 them, a.nything I have got to do with. If you will specify

2 what particular one, I will get it.

3 MR ROGERS:' I want all 1!r Darrow's telegrams you have got­

4 ten fran the telegraph company, Postal or Union, between

5 the 1st of July, 1911, and December 2nd, 1911.

6 MR FREDERICKS: Now, then, may it please the court, that

7 would· not do counsel any good, because he hasn't any -­

8 MR ROGERS: Then, I will take copies.

9 MRFREDERICKS: That is di.,;fferent. If you want copies, ~

10 can possibly get then tog ether for you.

11 THE COURT: That is what is wanted. How soon can you ~et

12 them?

13
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MR. FREDERICKS. Oh, that will ta~ some time, your Honor,

2 we can have them ready--that is a pretty big job.

3 THE COURT· Well, how big?

4 I UR. FREDF.R leKS. Well, we have about a hundred thausand

5 different documents and one thing and another there, and

6 we can have them at 10 o'clock tomorrow morning.

7 MR • RaCERS. 1 specify further--

8 MR. FREDERICKS· Yes, specify a whole lot.

9 MR. ROGERS. Yes, sir, here goes the other barrel. Have

10 you in your possession or under your control any letters

11 signed by l~. Darrow relating to the McNamara case, either

.12 I to, 1 think it is I •• M. Rappaport, or Ryan, or Harrington

13 or Gompers or Nockles, Ed Nockles or Samuel Conlpers, or

14 Morrison of the Riggs National Bank, which letters bear the

15 signature of Mr. Darrow or purporting to bear his signature,

16 which relate to or refer to the McNamara case or this case,

17 if any? A 1 have not.

18 MR. FREDF.RICKS. That is not a question, M~ Witness, that

19 is a request, and so far as possible, we will--

20 A 1 have nO.t anyway; 1 have not anyway.

21 MR. RaCERS· Q Those letters arethe same as the telegrams,

ar en' t they, that isto Bay, you have them under your contro:

to a certain extent? A No, 1 have not.

1m • FREDERICKS. !Jo, we have not to any such extent, we have

22

23

24

25
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not now--

MR • ROG ERS. r;lr -the copies? .
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1 MR. FREDEPICKS. We will give you all we have.

2 MR • ROGERS Son~e we want--

3 TEE COURT. Captain Fredericks has stated in open court he

4 will produce all he has tomorrow morning at 10 o'clock.

5 MR. FREDERICKS. We would kind of like to know what they

6 want.

7 MR • ROGERS. Further, 1 urderst';tnd they have' in their posses

8

9

10

11

12 I

ion some documents which were taken from the defendant's

office and which relate to the McNamara case which were in

his files, affidavits and lists of letters of one kind or

another, which we want, the names of witnesses and memo-

xianda.

13 MR. FREDER ICKS. All right, if we have any you can have them

14 l~m • ROGERS. All right, air.

15 I THE WITNESS. Any cross-examination?

16 THE COURT. }!o, that is all.

17 MR. DARROW. Why cannot we have those tonight so th~t we

18 can examine them tonight?

19 MR • FREDF.R 1CKS 1 will give them to you as fast as 1 can.

·20 MR • ROGERS. If you give them to me at 10 0 'clock you wUl

21 dump a bunch of stuff on me am 1 cannot go through it.

22 MR • FREDERICKS. We will get them for you as fast as we

23 can.

24 TPE COURT. };ir. Sher iff, ther e is too rr:.uch lev i ty amopg the

people inside of the rail and 1 will instruct you to sit

less people inside the rail,and if that does not

purpose--
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MR. DARROW. I think if the court calls attention to it

2 that is suff ic ient •

3 THE COURT. 1 have called attention to it in this way and

S. DARROW,CLARENCE

4 ' I hope that is all that will be necessary.

5 MR. DARROW. I think ao.

6

7

8

9

10

the defendant, called in his own behalf, being first duly

sworn, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

11 1m • ROGERS. Q Yeur name ia Clarence S. Darrow? A That

12 is my name.
old

13 Q How/are you, [Ill'. Dlrrow? A 1 will be 56 the next time,

14 in Apr iJ •

15 Q. 56 in Apr il j' A Yes, sir 0

16 Q Where have you been living the last 25 years? A Moat

of the tirre in C~icago until 1 came out here a little more

than a year ago.

thing from the Justice of the Peace up to the Supreme

Court of the United States.

How long have you been admitted to practice law?

36 years.

AbOU~A

Well, every-A

Lawyer.A

To what courts have you been admitted?Q

Q What is your profession?

Q

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

You may, in y.:::ur own way, and without my tak ing th e

to interrogate you With reference to each one, you
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1 the cases that you have been engaged as counsel in or as

2 arbitrator or as arbitor, whatever you call it.

3 MR. FREDERICKS. We object to thaton the ground it is

4 immaterial--oh, 1 will withdraw the objection.

5 A Well, 1 have been--I was general attorney for the Chicago

6 & North Western RaHway 5 or 6 years; in the active

'7 corporation of the city of Chicago, corporation counsel of

8 the city of Chicago--

9 Q What does that mean? A It is the chief law officer

10 of the city.

11 Q The same as ci ty attorney? A Yes. For a cons iderable

12 tirr..e. 1 was city assessment attorney of thesarre city for

13 a considerable time before and assistant corporation before

14 that, and special attorney for the city of Chicago after

15 this, 1 suppose, altogether, 5 or 6 years, cover ing two or

16 three different administrations; 1 have been counsel for

17 the Sanitary District in a number of cases, of lllinois--

18 Q What is the Sanitary District, ~ir. Darrow? A That is the

19 drainage district that was pro"ided for by special amt of

20 congress in the legislature for the drainage of Chicago

21 and the ship canal, also, and 1 have represented most of

22 the elevated railroads there in condemnation cases and other

23 cases, and mandamus cases on their account and against

24 them. 1 have represented pretty rr.uch all of therr, at dif-

25 ferent times inthose matters; 1 have, for a good many

261 years, been connected With moe t of the important labor

I
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1 cases in the ffiiddle west and perhaps in this country;

2 was the attorney for the coal miners of the anthracite

3 regions at the tiffie rresident Roosevelt appointed a com-

4 mission to settle their controversy •

5 Q Just a moment on the arbitration. That was the anthra-

6 cite coal strike) was it not? A yes.

7 Q In which President Roosevelt appointed a special arbitra-

8 tion to sit? A Yes.

9 Q Who were the ffiembers of the board that President Roosevel

10 constituted'?

11 MR. FREDERICKS. Vie hardly think that is material.

12 MR • ROGERS. It is not tak ing any t iue •

13 MR • FREDER leKS. All r igbt. Vi i thdraw the obje ct ion.

14 A JUdge Gray.

15 Q Judge Gray of Del':aware? A Fe der al Cour t of· De lawar e ;

recall at ttis moment.

stayed adjusted ever since.

Q It was adjusted by this board of arbitration?

regular army and two or three more whoe e names 1 do not

Yes, sir.A

And you appeared for the coal miners inthe adjustnient of
\

A Yes) andl
t ha t str ike?

Q

Bishop Spaulding of Illinois; Mr. Clark) who is a member of

the Interstate Con.rr.erce Comrrission; John Wilson of the
16 I

17

18

A2P.l.9

20

21

22

23
24 Q And stayed adjusted ever since? A Yes.

25 Q. Aside froIT, appearing befere this arbitration board of

26 I President Roosevelt in that matter, state what other ar

I
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1 tratien boards you have appeared befere in labor matters?

2 A Well, 1 was attorney for the Firemen of all the western

3 roads inthe arbitration before the Federal Board, that

4 lasted some two or three months; attorney for the swil:tfch

5 men of all the western roads in thesame kind of an arbi-

6 tration in the last three years.

7 Q Did those stay arbitrated? A They have so far.

8 1 was arbitrator between'the newspapers and the typographica

9 union, chos en by both B ides in Ch icago, not long l:e for a 1

10 alma here; arbitrator before the breweries and the employes;

11 National Brick COlcpany and their employes, and 1 was chosen

12 as a n arbitrator by both sides ; and settled the clothier,s

13 strikes in Chicago.

14 Q What do you mean by , clothiers strikes you settled in

15 Chicago, arbitrator? A Well, that"was a strike that in­

16 volved all the manufacturers of clothing in Chicago, 1

17 th ink some 40,000 men and women.

18 Q 40,000 garment makers? A And both sides agreed to all

the terms arbitrated.

A It has so far. Then 1 .,.las one of the arbitrators in the

Q Were you the sole arbitrator? A No, but we had one
out

more, but we got along with~choosing a third and settled

it withcut.

19

20

21

22

23

24

Q You settled that strike. Did that stay settled?

25 I

26 ,

I

controversy between the street railroad con~anies of Chicago

and the employes. 1 don't know, 1 have had a good many
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arbitrations you have been in, either as sole arbitrator

was one of the attorneys in the Moyer, Ha~vood and PettiBone

case, one .of them in the Debs case, and the Kidd case, which

Q "I am particularly referring to the matter of yo~ being

constituted an arbitrator to settle labor questions, and

how much of that you have done and how many of thoa e

trations of that sort, also as counselor arbitrator; 1

I have been in pretty

much all of thos e cases.

was a r~ther well known labor case.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10 or as one of the members of the arbitrators. Can you think

11 of any other strikes you have settled as an arbitrator?

12 A yes, the br ick company a.nd the employes referred the

13 question to rr.e alone without anybody else, and 1 suppose

14 1 have had' a dozen of them.

15 Q In which you settled the controversy between employes and

16 employers'? A Yes,

17 Q Well, those arcitrations involved the bettering of

18 cor"ditionsfor the working men who were on strike or out, an

19 involved wages, whether they should be paid higher wages

20 or not, and things of tbat sort'? A 1 think we got better

21 conditions in most all of them, 1 guess all of them.

22 MR. FREDERICKS. That was not the question. The question

23 was was that the question involved?

24 A That is right._

J\m. ROGERS. Q, The question that was involved. A· Strike

out that answer. The question of wages and hours
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ditions of labor were involved, and the recognition of

unions.
1

2

3 Q Well, now, in your prac tice did you ha ve anything to do

4 I with the franchiBe matter, that is the franchise for the

street railroads of Chicago. 1 think there was a contro­

versy which came up at the time Mayor Dunn was elected

Mayor of Chicago, that is, whether or not the franchise

of all the street ra.ilroa.ds had expired and what was to be

done With them? A 1 was special counsel for the city of

Cricago in the controversy between the railroads and the

city wherein the railroads claimed a perpetual franchise

and the city claimed the franchise had expired. 1 think

that lasted about two years and went to the Supreme Court

of the United States, involved a great deal pf property,

fifty to one hundred million dollars.

Q You appeared for the ci ty? A Yes.

Q What was the outcome of that case? A Vlell, the Supreme

Court held our way in that, that the franchise had expired~

Q Held in your favor? A Yes.

Q Now, can you think of any other cases that you have

been ~cour..sel of or arbitrator and how you have occupied your

time? A 1 have had pretty near every kind of a case;

1 suppose nine-tenths of my practice has been civil practice

and perhaps one-tenth of it criminal and about one-third

of it charity for the last twenty years.

Have you been eng~ged in any work other

5
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8
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irr:fi:ater ial •

work as a vacation only.

it up and asked me to go to Washington to meet them. 1

always been their friend and stood for'theirccausej

Q Any other? A 1 have done a great deal of that sort of

Q. Well, 11r. Darrow, what time did you come out here to

California this time, with reference to the McNamara case?

A About the first day of JUly.

Q State whether or not you went into the McNamara case

desiring to do so, or whether you went intoi t becau8 e it

appeared your duty'to do so?

MR. FREDERICKS. That is objected to onthe ground it is

.
:MR. ROGERS. Withdraw the question.Q 1n that regard, _

. ---how did you come to go into the McNau,ara case? A 1 ',vas

first requested to go into it in l,iay, 1 think requested by

the national organization, shortly after the men were_'

kidnapped. 1 refused the best 1 could, told them they

ought to have somebody that was younger and "I didntt W3.z:t thr

burden of it. Einally the American Federation of Labor took
I

1 law in these labor difficulties or where you have acted as

2 arbitrator, any other, what you might call an avocation?

3 A 1 have written a few books of more or less value, prob­

4 I ably 1ess, gener ally.

Q You may name some of the books which you have written

,hich you consider of less value, and some of us may differ

with you about. A ~olume of essays, a couple of novels,

and another volume, two volumes of essays, mainl~.

5
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7

8

9
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11
I

12
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.3p 14

1

~: I
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1 them were my fr iends; 1 plead with them the best 1 could

2 to get someone else, 1 knew about what was involved, 1

3 knew how hard the fight was, ani 1 knew how bitter it was, 1

4 I knew what it meant. They insisted OI:L my taking it and 1

think it waa in June, st<lyed a few weeks, a week or two,

perhaps; employed :I.r. Davis and Mr. Scott--Mr. Harr iman had

already been in the cases before 1 was--also employed Judge

McNutt, went back east to close up my office and dissolve

5

6

7

8

9

finally consented to do it. 1 came out here, .first, 1

10 my partnership, wind up my l::uaineso the best 1 could before

11 moving to Los Angeles, which 1 did. About the first of

12 July 1 arrived here. 1 knew nothing about the cases at all

except that they were men who were accused, neither of whom

1 had ever seen or heard of, as far as 1 knew, nobody

with~torn 1 had talked knew anything about it; they simply

knew he was secretary of the national organization, or a

member of a structural iron workers, and regarded it as

18 most of those contests are, one growing out of a contro­

19 -ersy bet,veen capital and labor, one that w01.lld not have

20 happened in' any event except ing for it. 1 got out here,

21

22

1 had presented to me a copy of the testimony before the
' _~------ ..•

grand jury, which covered a period of several months, as

23 1 recall it, and it was vert long and it took a good While

24

25

26

to get through With it. 1 knew about What was involved

in tr.e case aY'_d, of course, 1 knew that 1 would not be able

to attend to the details of it or to know much about the

detCiils of it.



1 had met him a good many times when he prepared the

--~-
Q As a matter of fact, what wa1:J your condition of health,

Q Had you had sone time preViously an operation of severity?

A Yes, but 1 had pretty well recovered from that and 1 had

contemplated retiring from the practice and did not feel 1

ness.

was able to uroiertake it. However, 1 had known (!.r: Harring-

ton casually for some 10 or 15 years, during which time he

had been the eviden~e gatherer, engaged in preparing cases

That was his busi-

11r. Darrow? A It "NaS not very strong.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9 I for the Chicago City Railway Company.

10

experience and his expertnesB in interviewing witness: and

I-knew what he could.do. 1 knew his11

12 I

13

evidence against me.

preparing evidence. 1 had. twice asked him to get

14 witnesses for me in two arbitration cases, ralroad cases,

15 the only time 1 had ever been associated wi th him that 1
~

16 recall, in business,but he had had a very long ex;perience

17 in that kind of work, he had never been connected with a

18 labor case, or the labor rovement in any way, but had

19 been associated always with the railroad company, up to a

20 year or so before that time- 1 asked him to take hold of

21 it, come out here and prepare the evidence for the case, to

22 organize the office hilnself, With that branch office.

23 MR. FORD. pardon me, Mr. Darrow, 1 don't remerrlber the exact

question, but it seems to me 1 have the question--l think

we are getting off to a point where it is not responsive

to the queBtion before the court.
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take charge of it, e uploy whom he wanted to-­
If

MR • FORD. Just a moment. lEe is going to relate a conversa-

tion between himself and Mr. narrington where these things

.
MIl. FORD. ~hen 1 move to s tr ike it out on that ground.

THE COUR~· ~he motion to strike out is denied.

MR • FORD. Jf the court please, we certainly do not have

to wait for oome general question to be asked and let the

Witness recite for half an hour--

MR. ROGERS. Well, he is not reciti]i:g.

MR • FORD· Well, 1 use that in no sense--l didn t t use it

in any offensive· sense--that he testified for· half an

hour. Here is aome testimony without the foundation

THSCOURT. Let us get the teotin.ony of this witness.

THE COUR T. Your only remedr' y when an objection is overrule

your only remedy is to move to strike it out.

occurred, we are entitled to the time, place and the cir­

cumstances of it. 1 don't think you can put a witness on

the stand and say, "Tell everything that relates to this

case, tell everything that occurred," that is not what the

law provides for?

THE COURT. What is the objection?

MR • FORD. Our obj ection is it is too general, it is not

s pee if ie, it is calling for a a tateID3 nt--

THE COURT. The Objedtion has been ruled on once.

MR. FORD. 1 am obj~cting to it on the ground it is calling

for a statement of the witness--there is no foundation laid.
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much time has been occupied in argument--

MR. FORD. 1 objedt to the statement of the court that 1 am

trying to prevent the testimony coming in. 1 certainly

have a right to ask the court to put the testimony in

in legal form as we deem it--

THE COURT. You have no right at this time to interrupt the

witness, Mr. Ford. The question has been objected to and
objection

/overruled. Your remedy is to wait until the question is

answered and then move to strike it out.

MR. FORD. 1 was taking exception to the Court's language

as an insinuation upon counsel •

THE COURT. The 'court does not mean to make any insinua­

tion that way, it is a fact, that is apparent, almost

all this day has been occupied in ar gument, and it is im­

portant to get SOIne testimony. This is not a greater

comment upon one counsel than the other, but it is simply a

statement of fact.

MR. FREDiRICKS. We do not wish to be captious, your Honor,

we wish to .give them every opportunity in tre world, but

if he goes on and nukes a long recital Without a quest ion

being asked, some of that will be material and some of it

irr@aterial and away at the end of half an hour we are

brought to a motion to strike out and 1 think the Witness

stould get down--

THE COURT. If such a condition as counsel seems to

ful of comes up the court wil interfere and prevent
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occurrence, three minutea and half an hour are a long ways

apart. Proceed, Mr. narrow.

A Mr.lJarrington Vias given charge of that department to

hire whom he pleased; he employed, an!ongst others, Mr.

Cooney and ;;lr. Fitzpatr iok, neither of whom 1 had ever seen

or hear d of before.

Q, Now, did he come out here after this employnient to go

to work 1 A He did.

Q Where was his office? A In the Riggins Building.

Q Approximately how close to yours? A There was one

office between us--it was all thrown open, however--of

course, he had other people working for him and 1 suggested

some myself.

MR. FORD' 1 move to strike out ·the last portion of the

answer, "he had other people working for him and 1 sug­

gested some of those myself", as not responsive to the

question, which was directed to the location of the office.

THE COUR~. Yes, it may not. be r espons ive. Str ike it out.

fiR • ROGERS, Q Did :~r. Harr ingtnn have other people work­

ing for him besides Mr. Cooney and Mr. Fitzpatrick, some of

wh om you BuggeD ted your s elfi'

MR. FORD' We object to thct as leading and suggestive.

THE COURT' Objection overruled.

A He did.

MR. ROGERS. Q Well, proceed now. A 1 presume first

last, a dozen or more. He consulted me very little abo
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1 those matters--

2 MR • FORD 1 move to strike that out as not responsive

3 to the question before the court.

4 I MR. ROGERS. That is not responsive.

5 THE COURT. Str ike it out.

6 A What is the question?

7 MR • FORD. The question is, did he have other people?

8 A He did.'

9 MR • ROGERS. Now, then, ;\1r Darrow, 1 want to take you back

10 for a few moments, to Bert Fran kl in. 1 will try -to get

11 into half an hour a matter now, 1 will take up-~

12 A Will you excuse me for suggesting something to you?

13 Q Yes. A As to time, if 1 took the Behm matter, which

14 particularly occurred in Chicago.

15 Q As you please, Mr. Darrow.A You want to take it up in

16 chr onological order and it might be a I i.ttle eas ier for me

17 BO that 1 might carry it along.

18 Q All right, if it might be easier, of course, 1 cannot

19 follow the plan 1 had because of the cut up time today •
.

20 A Well, we will take that--

21 Q Do you know George Behm? A 1 think 1 do now.

22 MR • FORD. 1 move to atr ike out the answer.

23 Q Where did you first meet him--

24 UtR • FOR D. --as not respona ive to the ques t ion.

25 has stated something, t think rreant something different

2G from '1lhat the proper answer i6.
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THE COURT' The motion to strike out-- 5898

MR. ROGERS. "1 think 1 do now. "
THE COURT. The motion to strike out is denied.

MR • ROGERS. Q When did you first meet Mr. Behm? A 1 met

him at my house-in Ch icago, 1 think about the middle of

June. 1 wouldn't say for sure the day.

Q was any one with him when you met him? A Yes.

Q Who? A Mrs McManigal, John Harr ington a part of the

time, and 1 am not sure that anybody elee was ther e--prob­

ably Mrs. narrow.

Q fS that the first time you had ever seen him there at

Ch iC9.go? A The fir s t time.

13 Q Now, you have heard his testimony here, Mr. narrow, you

have heard what he has said about his coming out her e. You

.
1 move to strike that out as not responsive to

may relate the conversation that occurred between yourself

and .Mr. Behm at your house in Chicago as near as you can

remember it. A ;lfir.a McManigal had alr'eady talked to me

about her husband--

MR. FORD.
.

the que s tion, calls for a conversat ion be tween l;ir. Behm and

tee Witness at his house, the witness's house, inthe middle

of June and he is now volunteer ing a statement about a pre­

vious statement had between him self ani another person at

some other place.

THE COURT. Str ike it out.

fu'R • ROGERS· 1 want to be heard on that.
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1 THE COURT. All right.

2 MR. ROGERS. 1 as ked for a conversation between himself and

3 Mr Behm and he says Mrs McManigal was present. Preliminary,

4 I for the purpose of explaining his answer and putting the

5 jury in possession of the conversation and the relation of

6 it, and by way of how it came about he states pr el iminar ily

7 that Mrs. McManigal already had talked to him.

8 Pl"'FE CO UR T • You can get that in a proper question, but

9 not in response to this question.

10 MR • ROGERS. All right. Q You had already tal ked to Mrs.

11 McManigal, then, go ahead after talking With Mrs. McManigal

12 go ahead and relate the conversation.

13 MR • FREDERICKS. The wi tnes8 answers yes?

14 MR. ROGERS· Yea.

15 A. 1 11 ad already talked with Mr s. McManigal wi th refer e roe

16 to my coming to Los Angeles.

17 MR. FORD· 1 move to strike out the sUbject matter between

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

himself and Mrs, McManigal as not being responsive to any

question, a conversation about her coming to Los Angeles.
.

All that is necessary to a proper understanding of the

conversation between the witness 3Ild Mr. Behm at Cticago in

the middle of June, counsel can very easily go back to the

conversation between Mrs. McManigal and the witness, state

the time and the place and the people there and it wi1l all

be before the court and it Will save rry making objections

which 1 am loath to do, but we want to have our



deal of time by doing that
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said to

8S for the

we wi' 1 show

possible we \Vol'ld not have any objection to

that has appeared or that has been brought

are any 0

tain sUbject, that is a fact. Then,

what he said to George Behm and what

him in reference to that fact.

another person in my office and there we said

ted in the questions to the time, place and persons

present and to the character of the answer that we may

that we may make our objections, if there

that we have to state the time, place the persons present.

Now, we want to introduce in evidence stantive testin:.ony I

MR • APPEL· Your Honor, we p opose to introduce our evidenc

in the manner we practice law do;

there is no rule of to say no one can

point me out a rule we want to ask abouta
a

conversation or the substanoe of a c or/fact

out in that conve ation between Mrs. McManigal and the

witness, but all we wat to know when and where it

of the fact.. that at the time he George Behm

that he had a~ready talked with N[['s. upon a cer-

occurred and :lid there, in response to. proper

questions bringing that ut, and counsel can save a great

purpose of showing intelligentJy what the

for instance, a man says. , "1 have tali<.ed

street concerning a certain matter and then 1

1

2

3

4'

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24 I
251
261

I
I



be stated. It is a motion to str ike out as not responsive.

MR. APPEL. We will submit it to your Honor and we will in-

troduce our ev idence if it takes a year, we will introduce
.

it just the way we think it proper.
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1 THE COURT' You undoubtedly have that right and you can do

2 it.

3 MR. APPEL, We have asked him about it.

4 I THE COURT. The question before the court was, "Did you have

5 a conversation with Mrs. McManigal?"

6 MR. ROGEBS. No, your Honor.

7 THE COURT, Then 1 have not the record right.

8 MB. FORD. 1 moved to strike out a portion of the Witness's

9 answer, he said, ,,1 had previously talked to·Mrs. Mdfanigal"

10 I which was already iIi evidence, then he adlia, "in reference

11 I to her coming out to Los Angeles. It

12 MR. APPEL, Exactly.

13 MR. ;FORD' That is th:o.. t latter part of it, in reference to

14 the subject matter of the 8onversation, 1 am objecting

15 to on the grQlnd it i8 not responsive to the present ques­

16 tion. If it is necessary to bring it out let the question

17

18

19

20

21 .. THE COURT. It is pr obabl e 1 have not the ques tion • Read

22 it.

23 (Las t quee tion and answer read,)

24 .M':t. FORD, rrhe conversation was about Behm, he stated the

25 sUbject rratter between himself and Mrs. McManigal ,am it

26 is that por t ion 1 objec ted to.
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1 THE COURT· 1 think the motion to strike out is well t2'ken

2 and it wi1l be granted.

3 MR • APPEL. We take an exception •
..

4 I MR. ROGERS. Q ftad you seen Mrs. McManigal before that

5 and had a conversation with her with reference to her coming

6 to Los A~geles? A 1 had. She had been at my office.

7 Q Now, then, you may proceed and relate the conversation

8 With you and Mr. BehIIl. A 1 ask you, M~' Ford, do you
,

9 object to my putting in whatwas said by Mrs. McManigal at

10 the same, conversat ion?

11· MR. FORD. part of the same conversation?

12 THE WITNESS. 1 do not want to take any advantage of i t--

13 !n'R.POGERS. -It is part of the sarIle conversation?

14 MR. FORD.' 'pardor: me, at the same conversation?

15 T'FE VlB'NESS. At the same conversation with Mr., Pehm.

16 MR. FORD. No', 1 don't have. any objection to it.

17 A' Mrs. McManigal and Y.r. Behm carre. to my house by appoint-

18 ~ ~leht, and 1 also asked r-rarr ington to be prese'nt • Mrs.

19 McManigal,told n.e that her husband had been taken frO'JY.:

20 Detroit,' taken to the house' of a private policeman, or detec-

21 tive named Reed in south Chicago with J. B. WcNaruara and I

22 . kept there for more than a week • _----~
23 ~:R. Rom~RS. Q. That is, inthe house of the private detec-

24 tive'? A Tn the !'louse of the private detective, without

25 any authority at law, she qlain:ed, 20m that 1':e h~-e-en~'--'-'---"

\
26 bull dozed and given a th ir d ciegr ee ; that she had been
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1 mi tted to see him once fol' a few minutes before ste started

2 for Califorr.ia--before he started for California-- that he

3 was broS!~ht from there to Los Angeles, that Burns and

4 I others had purported to give out var ieus statements which

5 she was sure were not true, at least did not believe were

6 true, ani that if he ever n;ade them they were made under

7 threats, intimidation and prorrdses; she said at tr_at time

8 thi?.;.t N:r. Burns, through McLaren and others, had rep~atedly \

9

10

13 for it, and give her money to come but tb at she would not

take any suchppsitior., sbe did not believe the storES and
been

she believed he was either crazy or had"driven or bribed

into doing it, s~wanted to come to Los Angeles to see bim

and 1 wanted her to come, and told her so--

14

15 I

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26 ,

I

.....,:.cc~-:::::::::::;:::::::::===----:c::::::::::r:::::::====4 '
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1 MR FREDERICKS:· At that conversation?

2

3

MR HOGERS: At the same conversation?

MR FORD: I move to strike out the words, ttl told her so. It

4 A I said

5

6

7

MR HOGERS: Let me hear that obj ro tion --

}}[R FORD: Let me make my motion •

THE COU'R'l': Very well.

8 MR FOW: I told her solt. That is the sUbstance of a con-

9 versation without stating what it was.

10 A. Let it be stricken out.

the court.

THE COURT: .. The motion to strike out is denied.

MR ROGERS: No, it won't be stricken out.

THE· COURT: There is no motion to strike out before

want ed me to defend him vii th the re3t,

I said to her, to get what money she could from Burns

or another story" and

to F6-Y her expenses, and I VIOuld give her the ,rest to have

her come here and interview her husband and that if her

I, would do iti.-but I didn't tell her or anybody else in

the 35 yars of my practice that I \'Ould ever win his c

husband had made these statements, whatever they were,

under threats and promises and wished to tell the truth
....'=0

A

MR FORD: Your Honor, I move to strike out the words ItI

told her so It , as not being the language or part of the con­

versation, but merely the witness' opinion ~~ to the result

of what he'said to her.

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

26

25
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1 or clear him•. That is something no lawyer ever lmows.

2 She said she would come and she said she ViaS very anxious

3 to come, she said her hEalth "'as very poor, and she would

4 like to have the uncle come with her, and I asked him if he

5 could come vJi t h her -- she also s aid on e of her neighbors

6 would come to help take care of the chil dren. The uncle

7 said he would come. I asked him how well he knew Uclfanigal

8 and he told me that he had not seen much of him in late

9 years, but he used to know him well, he was his sister's

10 boy, and had onc e lived with him on his farm. I asked him

11 when he got here to use any influence he had to find out

12 whether the stories that had been printed in the news-

13 papers were true and if not, what the tTIlth was, and if

14 the stories ,,-rere not true and McManigal said they were not,

15 and he v.anted me to defend him I would do it. He promised

16 to come if he would have his expenses paid cmd be made good.•

17 I told him I would pay his expenses, pay for his time that

18 he vas getting with the railroad company, and pay for a man

19 to look after his little farm while heV'as away, and he.
20 agreed to come. I gave him $100 that day. He told me at

21 the same conversation that a brother or a~ uncle or some

22 relative of his living near Toledo had seen :McUanigal,

A At any time.MR JiREDERICKS: At this time?

23 and Mc1fanigal had told him that he had been working for

24 the Erectors' A~sociatiqn, the only information tmt I

25 ever had on that .subj ect I got from George Behm.

26
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1 }.1:R FREDERICKS: I mean you got it at this time? A And I

2 got it at this time and I got it again. That is what I vas

3 referring to now.

4 MR FREDERICKS: Excuse me for int errupting you. A I

5 am not sure whether anything Vias said at that conversation

6 in reference to any cases pending against Mr McManigal in

7 Chicago or not. There might have been 0 l' might not. Any­

8 how, I lEarned somewhere about suc h cases. I had no conver

9 sation whatever at that time or any other time withMr

10 Behm or anybody elsa on earth in referenc e to asldng him

11 to change his testimony.

12 MR FOP~: The last statement of the witness, I move to

13 strike that out as not responsive to the question.

14 THE COUR[': Beginning,"I had. no conversation at that time",

15 and so on, is stricken ou t 8S not responsive to the qu es-

16 tion.

17 MR ROGERS: I take an exception to' that ruling.

18 Q Did you have any conversation at t:ta.t time or any

19 other time in yJhich you told Behm 0 l' any other person t:ta. t

20 you wanted McManigal. to change his testimony or refer to

21 it in any way? A I did not. McManigal had never given

22

23

any testimony, and so far as I know or have ever been info 1IIl

ad never has, and I never asked him to have it chang ed.

24 MR FORD: I move· .to strike that portion "McManiga 1 had never

given any t~stimony at that time or a~ other time" as
-, -"\ .

not responsive' to.thejqrt.estion and hearsay •
. "'! .. , .

25

26



1 THE COURT:

2 l.fR ROGERS:
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The motion is denied.

Did you ask him at that conversation or any

3 other conver,sation to come here to get McManigal to change

4 his testimony? A I did not at any time.

5 Q Did Behm come here, as a matter of fact? A The next

6 time I s aw Behm I mw him in Los Angeles.

7 Q How much money did you give Behm altogether? A Abou't

8 $400.

9 Q For his time, ex:penses and payment A For his· time,

else?

his expenses and hi ring a man, and he figured the accotUlt

himself, and then asked'me for two or three hundred more,

whclhh I· didn t t give him.

say he pllrpo sed to prove you ..vere gUi~bbornationof

perjury and bribery with reference to;Ea'in • NoV!, did you

ever give him any money whatever as a bribe, or anythil~

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

Q He figured the accOtUlt himself. You heard Mr Ford

18 UR FORD: I move to strike out the s ta tement of counsel as

19

20

21

22

to what he heard me say, and we object to the question as.
con taining two questions; one, as to whet her he had h moret

me make a certain statement and the other asking if he did

commi t~; bribery, two separate questions there.

23 TEE COURr:

24 A

Obj ection overruled.
"

I h ERrd yr F'rederic ks take it back the n ex:t day.

25

26

I never did give him any money for any such purpose, or

ask him to do any such thing.
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mean here --

was.

THE COURT: Obj ection OJ' erruled.

I don't remember that.What? AQ

Q
.

Wellf can you approximate it? A No, EOCcept as I know
,.-,,-_.-,-_.,-- ',---'-

\v.hat about such things were, I know vmat the Whole bill

$425.

Ii Do you remember the items t!Rt bill inc lu ded? A

Q How muc h '1ivaS it? A Four hundred 0 dd dollars; I think

up of three items, expenses, hisvages and the vmges for

A He told me, y as, in Chicago or h ere, I am not quite sure

whatit was, but I think in th e neighborhood of $150 or

$160 a month, on the average. Of course, they never run

exactly the sa.'Ilte; they are paid by trips.

Q How ~ong was he out here? A That I cannot recall, but

I think about a month; I might be mistaken on that.

Q Did he tell you how much the wages were for the man to

take care of his farm? A He did?

Q What was his business, do you remember?

MR FORD: I think tmt would be calling for hearsay.

],fR "ROGERS: Did he tell you what his business was? A You

Q No, Behm? A Oh, he was an engineer, locomotive

engine er for the Chicago, Milwaukee & St Paul Railway.

Q Did he tell you how much his~ges ,~re?

MR FORD: We obj act to that, not being the time:, place and

persons present -- it is not very material, I suppose.

26

25
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3

4

5

6

7

8
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1 man on the fann.

2 Q That is what you paid him? A That is all I paid him,

3 all I promised.

4 Q I 'VIB.nt to bring up one t bing, if you don't mind, to

5 take you off this matter, and we will finish it tomorrow.

6 One thing before we go tonight, I vant to ask you.

7 Did you her Mr Franklin testify here trat the first time

8 you ever spoke to him about procuring jurors or talesmen,

9 was on the 5th day of October -- bribing jurors or getting

10 jurors, you heard that statement, did you? A I did.

11 Q You hard him say, didyou, also, that after the 5th

12 day of october, namely, the 6th day of October, the suc­

13 ceeding morning after he had talked to you on the 5th

14 about bribing a juror, you ga.ve him $1000 by check. Did

15 you give him any check on the 6th my of October? A First,
a,q Z~

16 ~r the oonversation on the 5th, I never had any such.

17 I never then, or any other time talked to him 'with refer­

18 ense to bribing Mr Bain.

19 },{R FORD: I move to s trike that ou~ as notresponsive,

20 that is not \\hat he asked the witness, the question is

21 THE COURT: Strike it out.

I had no such conversation with him on the 5th.

22 MR FORD: -- the quetion is here -- "Did you on the 6th--"

23 M:R AFPliL: He has ans..,7ered, and the n met thing was "Did

24 you have any sucp. conversation on the 5th", if they ..,-ant

25 to be technical --

26 A
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MR ROGERS: Did you give him a check on the 6th? A I

gave him no check of any sort on th e 6th of October.

Q Did you give him any check after the 5th, when he says

you talked to him on the subject 0 f bribing Bain?

A Well, I did a good while after the 5th, but I did not

before the 5th, or 6th -- I suppose.about the 15th.

UR F01ID: W~t is tlat?

~Question and answer read.)

A You di ch' t get me right. I didn't say I di d on the

10th, I didn't until many days after the 6th.

Q On the day succeeding any talk you had wi th him about

bribing jurors -- he says the 5t h -- did you give him any

check? A I did not.

0, Having heard his testimony VJhich was on the 5th,

that he had this alle ~ed talk with you, and havi~ heard

his alleged testimony it $S on the morning of the 6th

you gave him a check for $1000 -- did you give him any

check at that time for th e purpose of bribing Bain or any

other person? A I never gave him any check forany pur­

pose at that time, on the 6th.

Q' Did you give him a check before the 5th? A I gave

him a chook on the 4th for $1000, but ez:actly as I had

given him c hacks before, and ecactly I had given him checks

after this.

Q That is the day before he says you had a talk vdth h·

about the jury? A The day before.



1 Q, P..ave you got that check?

2 MR GEISLER: I have it down at the office.

3 MR ROGERS: On October 4th --

4 MR FREDERICKS: Obtober the 4th

5 A On October the 4th --

6 MR ROGERS: I wOt1ld like to stop now.

7 THE COURT: It is only 5 minutes to five. All right.

S MR ROGERS: I will produce the check in th e morning. I

9 supr,osed that it was here.

10 (.Jury admonished. Recess until tomorrow morning at

11 10 o'clock.)

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
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